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LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS

Central Bank of India

National Housing Bank

Housing & Urban Development Corporation Limited

Specified Undertaking of Unit Trust of India

Shri. B.K. Divakara & Central Bank of India

Shri. B.K. Singal & Central Bank of India

Shri. P.J. Kumar & Central Bank of India

Shri. B.S. Harilal & Central Bank of India
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

S. Name Designation

No.

1. Shri P. Ramana Murthy Chairman (Nominee of Central Bank of India)
2. Shri B.K. Divakara Director (Nominee of Central Bank of India)
3. Shri Anil Girotra Independent Director

4. Shri Bibhas Kumar Srivastav Independent Director

5. Shri P.J. Kumar Director (Nominee of Central Bank of India)
6. Shri B. K. Singal Director (Nominee of Central Bank of India)
7. Shri V.T. Subramanian Director (Nominee of HUDCO)

8. Smt. Vasantha Govindan Director (Nominee of SUUTI)

9. Shri Kulasekhara Chakravarthy Director (Nominee of NHB)

10. Shri B.S. Harilal Managing Director
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LIST OF COMMITTEES

S. No.

Name of the Committee

Committee Members

Audit Committee

a)
b)

Shri Anil Girotra, Chairman
Shri B.S. Harilal

Credit Management Committee

a)
b)
c)

Shri Anil Girotra, Chairman
Shri P.J. Kumar
Shri B.S. Harilal

HR Committee

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

Shri Anil Girotra, Chairman
Shri V.T. Subramanian
Smt. Vasantha Govindan
Shri P.J. Kumar

Shri B.S. Harilal

CSR Committee

a)
b)
c)

Shri Anil Girotra, Chairman
Shri P.J. Kumar
Shri B.S. Harilal

Risk Management Committee

a)
b)
c)

Shri Anil Girotra, Chairman
Shri P.J. Kumar
Shri B.S. Harilal

Nomination & Remuneration

Committee

a)
b)

Shri Anil Girotra, Chairman
Shri B.K. Divakara

Stakeholders Relationship
Committee

a) Shri VT Subramanian, Chairman

b) Shri B.S. Harilal

c)

Shri Abhijit Das

Risk Management Committee

a) Shri Anil Girotra, Chairman
b) Shri P.J. Kumar
c) Shri B.S. Harilal
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

The Board of Directors of your Company takes pleasure in presenting 27"Annual Report on the
business and operations of the Company together with the audited accounts for the financial year
ended March 31, 2018.

1) HOUSING INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

Housing is a primary necessity in every economy and is a basic indicator of growth and social well-
being. Development of housing is not only important to economic growth but is also one of the tools
for economic development considering the accelerator impact it has on various industries including
construction and infrastructure sectors as it generates demand for supporting industries and leads
to creation of job opportunities. Housing Finance continues to be focus segment for both Banks as
well as Housing Finance Companies and it has registered CAGR of 20% during last decade.

Government of India launched Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme to provide interest subsidy for housing
loans to eligible beneficiaries belonging to Middle Income Group (CLSS for MIG). It was an extension
of Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme provided to Low Income Group and Economically Weaker Section.
Internationally 90% of prospective home buyers do not have access to formal housing finance
option. This situation has improved since implementation of PMAY CLSS scheme. The scheme aims
to build 60 million housing units by 2022. In March 2018, the Union Cabinet approved creation of
National Urban Housing Fund (NHUF) of Rs. 60,000 crore for speedy implementation of PMAY
(URBAN). According to KPMG estimates, there would be a total requirement of 48 Million units of
urban dwelling by 2022.

Banking and Financial sector has seen a strong momentum in recovery of dues. Government of India
launched IBC Act. Commercial banks faced setback in lending to realty and allied businesses. Non-
Banking Finance Companies (NBFCs) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) have taken the lead to
meet the supply side gap for infrastructure projects and affordable housing.

The Indian financial sector comprises of a range of institutions like Commercial and Co-operative
banks, Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs), Insurance Companies, Capital market players and
Money market institutions. Over the years, Government of India has introduced many liberal
reforms to give impetus to financial sector. Introduction of Payment Banks and Small Finance Banks
is giving added push. Implementation of Real Estate Regulation Act (RERA) and GST caused a
temporary slowdown in the market. These are not expected to obstruct growth in the long term.
RERA is likely to bring the required transparency to real estate sector. Even though the financial
sector in India is dominated by banking sector, with commercial banks accounting for more than
64% of the total assets held by the financial system, the role of NBFC sector has been growing
steadily.

A positive environment along with other encouraging factors has set the tone for the growth of

Housing Finance Industry in the near future. Implementation of RERA is the finest example of
extension of Government support to the real estate sector and the customers. Government has
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upheld the principle of transparency in the system. Further, post Demonitisation slowdown has been
observed in the prices of residential properties, enabling the Lower and Middle Income Groups to
buy their Homes. Lowering of Bank Rates has turned out to be an added advantage to them.

2) PERFORMANCE

Your Company’s strategy for the financial year 2017-18 was to strengthen the productivity through
the existing capacity and not to expand to new geography. Company has taken a conscious decision
to improve the asset quality and upgrade IT Platform. Company through its existing branches
succeeded in gaining customer satisfaction and business. During the year of severe competition in
housing finance industry, your Company managed to achieve total revenue of Rs. 150.57 crore
marking a growth of 6.98 % over Rs. 140.75 crore in the previous year.

Despite numerous challenges, your Company’s profit before tax for the year ended 31 March 2018
stood at Rs 26.60 Crore as against Rs 18.27 Crore in the previous year. Your Company’s profit for the
year (after adjustments related to previous year) stood at Rs 16.84 Crore as against Rs 11.04 Crore in
the previous year registering a growth of 52.54%.

Further, your Company is relentlessly working on reduction of NPAs which stood at Rs 26.90 Crore as
on 31 March 2018 compared to Rs 21.48 Crore in the previous year ended 31* March 2017.
Regulatory forbearance on account of demonetization had given the Company a cushion of Rs. 8
Crore as on 31* March 2017, which had to be classified as NPA as on 31° May 2017. Rigorous steps
had been initiated to recover NPA and prevent fresh slippage. Company mainly focused on recovery
in prudentially written off accounts. Recovery in w/o accounts in this year is almost ten times that
was achieved in FY 2016-17 i.e. Rs. 1.18 Cr as against 0.12 Cr.

a) Financial Highlights

The financial performance for the fiscal 2018 is summarized here below:
(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
A) | Gross Income 150.57 140.75
B) | Total Expenses 123.67 123.21
C) | Operating Profit (A-B) 26.90 17.54
D) | Extraordinary ltems + - 1.32
E) | Adjustment related to previous year (0.30) (0.59)
F) | Profit before tax (C+D-E) 26.60 18.27
G) | Tax Expenses 9.76 7.23
H) | Profit for the year (G-H) 16.84 11.04
1) | Profits brought forward from previous year 21.52 25.07
J) | Profits Available for Appropriation 38.36 36.11
Appropriations
Transfer to Special Reserve (as per IT Act) 5.71 3.83
Transfer to Additional Reserve (as per NHB Act) 0.00 0.00
Transfer to CSR Reserve Fund - 0.27
Transfer to General Reserve 1.43 0.96
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Appropriation for dividend (Including dividend 6.02 1.51

tax, surcharge & cess)

Appropriation to DTL on Special Reserves Plus - 8.02

provision for tax for previous year

Balance carried forward to Balance sheet 25.20 21.52
Total 38.36 36.11

Figures in parentheses are in negative.

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section

148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.
b) Lending Operations:

i) Sanctions

During the year 2017-18, your Company has sanctioned loans amounting to Rs.258.18 crore
as compared to total sanctions of Rs. 409.84 crore during the previous year ended March 31,

2017.

e Out of above, Housing Loans account for Rs.196.96 crore as compared to Rs.324.30

crore in the corresponding financial year ended March 31, 2017.

e Non-Housing Loan accounts for Rs.61.22 crore as compared to Rs. 85.54 crore in the

corresponding financial year ended March 31, 2017.

Sanctions (Amt in Cr.)

= Housing Non-Housing

2017-18 2016-17

ii) Disbursements

During the year 2017-18, your Company has disbursed loans amounting to Rs.281.32 crore
as compared to disbursement of Rs.415.68 crore in previous financial year ended March 31,

2017.
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Out of above Housing Loans account for Rs. 212.36 crore as compared to Rs.
327.60 crore disbursement in corresponding financial year ended March 31, 2017.

Non-Housing loans account for Rs. 68.96 Crore as compared to Rs. 88.08 crore in
previous financial year ended March 31, 2017.

Disbursements(Amt in Cr)

» Housing Non-Housing

2017-18 2016-17

c) Loan Outstanding

Total Advances stood at Rs. 1266.09 Cr as on March 31,2018 as against Rs. 1322.062 Cr as on
March 31, 2017.

2017-18

2016-17

Loan Outstanding (Amt in Cr.)

0

200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

d) Profit and Net Owned Funds

During the year 2017-18, your Company has made Profit before Tax of Rs. 26.60 crore as
compared to Rs. 18.27 Crore in 2016-17 and Profit after Tax (PAT) of Rs. 16.84 crore as
against PAT of Rs. 11.04 crore in the previous year resulting in an increase of 52.54%.
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The total owned fund of your Company stood at Rs. 99.46 Crore as on March 31, 2018 as
against Rs. 88.35 crore in 2016-17.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio of your company is at 17.97% as against the norm of 12 percent
stipulated by the National Housing Bank (NHB). Earning Per Share (EPS) stood at Rs. 6.73 per
share as on March 31, 2018.

Net Worth (Amt in Cr.)
2017-18

2016-17

o
N
o
Y
o
2]
o
o]
o

100 120

e) Future Outlook

During the current financial year, it is expected that housing finance business will grow much
faster mainly because of stable political environment, reforms and administrative policies of
Government giving thrust to housing sector. The result oriented reforms by government and
other internal and external factors will boost the housing finance business.

Your Directors are very confident that your Company would continue to exhibit good
performance in the current year with its efforts to optimally utilize all the resources
available at its disposal and achieve the targeted result.

During the current year, the Company expects to mobilize sufficient funds through infusion
of funds via Tier | capital and otherwise to maintain good liquidity condition and resultantly
leading to increased loan disbursement.

During F.Y.2018-19, the Company proposes to take following initiatives to improve its
operational as well as financial performance and to take it to the next level:

¢ Raising funds through loans at attractive rate of interest and terms and then making
efforts towards reducing overall cost of funds.

o Public Deposits is one of the cheap sources of Fund. Company is looking to raise fund by
mobilizing public deposits at attractive rates of interest as compared with other players in
the market.

e Brand building measures to improve general awareness and the image of the Company.

e Strengthening of recovery mechanism to recover NPA a/cs and recycle blocked funds to
generate more income.

e Company will also make recovery in prudentially written off accounts of earlier years
which will directly bolster the income of the Company.
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3) DIVIDEND

Considering the performance of your Company during the year 2017-18, your Directors are pleased
to recommend a final dividend @ of 20% (i.e. Rs.2.00 per share of face value of Rs.10 each) for the
year ended 31* March 2018.

4) FINANCIAL RESOURCES
i) Deposits

As on 31.03.2018, the total deposits of your Company are Rs. 542.84 crore (which includes
from public of Rs. 279.46 crore and institutional deposits of Rs. 263.38 Crore) as compared to
Rs. 680.58 crore (which includes Public deposits of Rs. 403.04 crore and institutional deposits
of Rs. 277.54 Crore) at the end of the previous year.

The deposit scheme of your Company has been rated “FA/Negative” by the rating agency
CRISIL.

Your Company being a housing finance company registered with the National Housing Bank
(NHB), has complied with the Directions/Guidelines issued by NHB with regard to deposit
acceptance and renewal.

800 Deposits (Amt in Cr.)
700
600
500
400
300
200

100

0

2017-18 2016-17

® Institutional Public

ii) Borrowings from Banks

Your Company has availed a Term Loan and Overdraft facility from the Central Bank of India.
The outstanding balance of the loan/facility as on 31.03.2018 is Rs. 318.56 Crore as against Rs.
245.41 crore as on 31.03.2017.
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Your Company has availed term loan from HDFC Bank. The outstanding balance of the term
loans availed from HDFC Bank as on 31.03.2018 is Rs. 91.47 Crore as against Rs. 125.77 crore
as on 31.03.2017.

Your Company has availed term loan from Bank of Baroda. The outstanding balance of the
term loans availed from Bank of Baroda as on 31.03.2018 is Rs. 45.70 Crore as against Rs.
29.99 crore as on 31.03.2017

The total outstanding balance as of 31.03.2018 under the head ‘borrowings from Banks’ are at
Rs. 455.73 Crore as against Rs. 401.17 crore during the previous financial year.
iii) Refinance from National Housing Bank

In the Financial Year 2017-18, your Company has availed refinance amounting to Rs. 35.00
crore from the National Housing Bank. The amount of refinance outstanding as of 31.03.2018
from the National Housing Bank was Rs. 152.40 crore.

5) UNSECURED NON CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES
During the year 2015-16, the Company raised Unsecured NCD amounting to Rs. 30.00 cr.

through private placement basis. The debentures are currently rated as CARE A-; Stable
[Single A Minus; Outlook: Stable]

Borrowing Composition

m Banks & Fl's
® Fixed Deposits

Non-Convertible
Debentures

m Refinance from
NHB

6) SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized & Paid-up capital of the Company as on 31.03.2018 are Rs. 50,00,00,000 divided
into 5,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each and Rs. 25,00,00,000 divided into 2,50,00,000
equity shares of Rs.10/- each respectively.

i) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

As on 31° March 2018, 28.80% of the share capital of the Company representing 72,00,000
equity shares were held in dematerialized form and the balance 71.20%, representing
1,78,00,000 equity shares were held in physical form.
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ii) Appointment of Registrars & Share Transfer Agents

The Company has appointed M/s Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd as Registrar & Share Transfer
Agents of the Company. Hence all dematerialization/rematerialisation requests shall be routed

through your depository participants addressing it to our R&T agents at the address mentioned
below:

Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd.

Plot No. 17 to 24, Vithal Rao Nagar,
Madhapur, Hyderabad-500 081

Tel.: 040-23420815-24; Fax: 040-23420814

7) INVESTMENT

The Company has maintained its Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) as per NHB guidelines. The
Company has invested Rs. 29.76 crore in approved securities.

8) UNCLAIMED DEPOSITS

As on 31* March 2018, 572 public deposit accounts amounting to Rs. 6.52 Cr have remained
unclaimed. The depositors have been advised about the maturity of their deposits with a request
either to renew or claim the same.

During the year under review, your Company transferred an amount of Rs.801607/- to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund as per the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of deposit and interest thereon unclaimed & unpaid for more than 7 years.

9) NON PERFORMING ASSETS

Your Company has been pursuing all the available options to recover its dues from non-
performing accounts. Your Company has taken recourse to Securitization & Reconstruction of
Financial Assets & Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 and Section 138 of Negotiable
Instruments Act, 1881 for recovering the overdue and bringing down the NPA. The gross NPA
stood at Rs. 26.90 crore as against Rs. 21.48 Crore for the previous financial year ended 31* March
2017.

With due provisions the net NPA stood at Rs.16.72 Crore as on 31% March 2018 as against Rs.
13.69 Crore as on 31 March 2017.

Net NPA (Amt in Cr.)

16.72 ‘
13.69

20

10

2017-18 2016-17
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10) BRANCH NETWORK

As on date your Company is operating in 9 states through a network of 18 branches and two
representative offices.

11) AUDITORS

In exercise of the powers conferred by Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) appointed M/s MULTI Associates, Chartered
Accountants, having Registration No. 509955C as the statutory auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2017-18.

No adverse comments have been made by the Auditors on the Financial Statements of the
Company. However reply to the observations of Auditor is given in Annexure 1.

Review of Accounts by C&AG

The accounts of the Company were taken up for review by the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India.

Review of accounts for F.Y. 2017-18 by the Comptroller and auditor General of India, which forms
part of this report, is annexed hereto marked as Annexure | along with Company’s replies to the
comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

12) DIRECTORS

In terms of Article 99 of the Articles of Association of your Company and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Vasantha Govindan and Shri B. K. Divakara, Directors are liable to retire
by rotation and are eligible for re-appointment.

The following Directors ceased to be Directors of the Company during the reporting year:

S. Name of the Director Date of Cessation
No. W.e.f.

1 Shri Anil Kumar Bansal 22.05.2017

2 Shri Sanjay Mallik 31.07.2017

3 Shri Narendra Singh 21.06.2017

4 Shri Pradeep Kumar 21.06.2017

5 Shri V. Sridar 18.01.2018

6 Shri V. S. Krishna Kumar 30.03.2018

The Directors of your Company wish to place on record their appreciation for the services
rendered and contribution made by them during their tenure as Managing Director/ Independent
Director/ Nominee Director of the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified from being appointed as Director as specified
in the Companies Act, 2013.
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Declaration of Independent Directors under section 149 (6) of the Act

Your Company received declarations from the Independent Director, viz Shri. Anil Girotra for the
financial year 2017-18 as required under the provisions of section 149 (6) of the Companies Act,
2013. Hence, your Directors are of the opinion that the Independent Director is not disqualified
to continue as Independent Director on the Board of the Company.

13) EVALUATION

Nomination & Remuneration Committee meeting evaluated the performance of Chairman,
Managing Director, Non Executive Directors and Board as a whole. The Nomination &
Remuneration Committee carried the evaluation of each Director based on his/her contribution
in the Board Meeting and other Committee Meetings.

14) CHANGE IN KMP

During the year under review Shri Sanjay Mallik resigned from the position of Managing Director
withdrawal of nomination by Central Bank of India on 31.07.2017. Shri B. S. Harilal was appointed
as Managing Director of CBHFL w.e.f 31.08.2017.

15) NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year the Board met four times, i.e. on May 22, 2017; August 31, 2017; December 04,
2017 and March 15, 2018. For the number of meetings attended by the Directors and other
details, please refer to “Report on Corporate Governance” appended as Annexure VI to this
Report.

16) AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your Company duly constituted Audit Committee in terms of the Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013. As on 31* March 2018 the Committee comprised of Two members:

1 Shri. Anil Girotra- Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman
2 Shri. B. S. Harilal- Managing Director Member

The Board adopted Vigil Mechanism as required under the provisions of section 177 (9) wherein it
provides adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and also
provides provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or
exceptional cases. This mechanism would enable your Company to evolve a process to encourage
ethical corporate behavior.

17) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is constituted under Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013. As on 31 March 2018 the Committee comprised of 3 members:

1 Shri. Anil Girotra- Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman
2 Shri. B. K. Divakara- Non-Executive Director Member
3 Shri Vineet Singhal- Non-Executive Director Member
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The role of the Committee is to consider and recommend to the Board the
appointment/reappointment of Managing Director/Executive Director(s) in addition to review of
their performance and recommending to the Board remuneration for the said directors and also
for the key managerial personnel and other Senior Management employees as the case may be.
Nomination remuneration policy of the Company is annexed as Annexure-I|

18) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company duly constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in terms of the
provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. As on 31* March 2018 the Committee
comprised of 4 members:

1 | Shri. Anil Girotra- Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman
2 | ShriP.J. Kumar-Non-Executive Director Member
3 Shri Vineet Singhal- Non Executive Director Member
4 | Shri. B. S. Harilal- Managing Director Member

The Committee performs the functions as defined under the provisions of section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

During the year, the Company has contributed a sum of Rs. 33,02,843/- to AIIMS (All India Institute
of Medical Sciences) on account of CSR fund which pertains to financial year 2017-18.

The disclosures as required under Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 have been provided in this report as Annexure-Ill which forms part of this report.

19) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors reports that:-

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year 2017-18, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanations relating to material
departures;

(ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year 2017-
2018 and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

(iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

(iv) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis, and

(v) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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20) PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Except in the ordinary course of its business, your Company neither gave any loan or guarantee
nor made any investment under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

21) PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of all contracts or arrangements entered into by your Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transactions under third proviso thereto have been disclosed in Form No. AOC-2 which is
annexed to this report as Annexure-IV. Company’s Policy while dealing with Related Party
Transaction is annexed to this report as Annexure-IV A

22) EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of annual return pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this report as
Annexure-V.

23) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND EXPENDITURE

Since your Company is a housing finance company and does not own any manufacturing facility,
the particulars relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption stipulated under rule
8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable.

The Company did not earn any income nor incurred any expenditure in foreign currency during
the year under review.

24) RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy. As a lending entity, your
Company is exposed to various risks such as credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, legal risk,
interest rate risk and operational risk. Your Company emphasis on risk management practices to
ensure an appropriate balance between risks & returns.

In compliance of Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 Board has constituted a
Risk Management Committee to monitor, measure and mitigate the risk faced by the Company.

In addition to Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee, the Asset Liability Committee
monitors Structural Liquidity and Interest rate risk Management. ALCO is also responsible to
superwise short term business requirements of the Company.

The Committees review compliance with risk policies, monitor risk tolerance limits, review and
analyze risk exposures related to specific issues and provide oversight of risk across the
organization.
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25)REPORT UNDER THE PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT ACT

During the year, there was no complaint reported under the Prevention of Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.The company has
complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

26)FRAUD REPORTED DURING THE YEAR

During the financial year 2017-18 no fraud account was detected in the Company.
27)STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has been complying with the standards of Corporate Governance as required
under the Companies Act, 2013. The Board discharges the duties and responsibilities as required
under the applicable statute(s) including the Companies Act, 2013.

Your Company has Board of Directors which has formal schedule of matters reserved for its
consideration and decision apart from legally required matters.

Since the Company’s equity shares are not listed on any stock exchange provisions relating to
corporate governance as per listing agreement are not applicable. However the Company
voluntarily adopted them andarebrought out in the report attached as Annexure-VI. The Board of
Directors regularly reviews the management reports on statutory and regulatory compliances.

28)HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company airns to align HR practices with business goals, motivate people for higher
performance and build a competitive working environment. Productive high performing
employees are vital to the Company’s success. The Board values and appreciates the contribution
and commitment of the employees towards the performance of your Company during the year.

As on March 31, 2018, the Company had 73 employees on rolls.

Information as per Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014

During the year under review, your Company had no employee whose remuneration exceeded
the limits prescribed under Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 made under Chapter Xlllof the Companies Act, 2013 and as
amended from time to time.

29)COMPLIANCE WITH DIRECTIONS & GUIDELINES OF NHB

Your Company has complied with the guidelines and directions issued by National Housing Bank
on asset classification, accounting standards, income recognition, provisioning, capital adequacy,
credit rating, etc. as amended from time to time.

The Know Your Customer (KYC) guidelines, Fair Practices Code, Anti Money Laundering standards
and Most Important Terms & Conditions as notified by the NHB are available on the Company’s
website.
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Your Company is also registered with Central Registry of Securitization and Assets Reconstruction
and Security Interest of India (CERSAI) and is registering its charge in respect of mortgages with
CERSAI

30) INTERNAL AUDIT, INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL & ADEQUACY

Your Company performs internal audit of the branches on quarterly basis and conducts
comprehensive audit of functional areas and operation of the Company to examine the adequacy
of and compliance with policies, procedures, and statutory and regulatory requirements.
Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the audit committee.
The Audit Committee reviews and evaluates adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control environment and monitors the implementations of audit recommendations.

31) PENALTY

During the year Company was imposed penalty of Rs. 82830.00 by National Housing Bank for
non-maintenance of SLR in F.Y. 2015-16 and of Rs.52800 by Registrar of Companies for late
registration of floating charge created in 2010.

32) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the continued support and guidance
from the Government of India, National Housing Bank, Central Bank of India, HUDCO and
Specified Undertaking of Unit Trust of India. Your Directors also wish to place on record their
appreciation for the continued patronage and support extended to the Company by its clients
and depositors and also the contribution made by the members of staff of the Company.

33) A detailed Management Discussion and Analysis is appended as Annexure VII

For and On Behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
P. Ramana Murthy B. S. Harilal
Place : Mumbai Chairman Managing Director
Date : 13.08.2018 DIN 07815852 DIN 07886919
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Annexure |

S.No

Statutory Auditor’s Observation

CBHFL’s Reply

Books of accounts of the company are maintained in a computer
software for Head office and branches separately. In books of accounts
for the year ending 31st March,2017 the closing entries are passed in
the month of July-August,2017 in the said software. Hence the opening
balance in the books of accounts as on 1st April,2017 does not tally with
the audited Balance sheet as on 31st March,2017 . The accounting
software used by the company needs immediate changes as the same
does not allows closing entries to be made on the desired dates.
Secondly the software should prepare at least final accounts as per the
provisions of Companies act.

Closing entries as of 31 March 2018 were passed in the accounting software by
activating ‘supplementary entry module’, and the problem faced till 2017 has
been resolved. Trial balance given by the software package is used to prepare
final accounts as per provisions of Companies Act or as per provisions of Banking
Regulation Act as and when it is necessary for reporting/ amalgamation purpose.

As per policy of the company, valuation of the construction of the
property is to be done at different stages of construction on percentage
basis. In our opinion the percentage of construction cannot be certified
by the valuer correctly but it should be done on actual construction
done basis. Secondly we have observed that in almost all the cases the
valuers have valued property much higher than the actual sale price. It
results in failure of auction when the account turns NPA, as the
valuation at the time of auction is always done keeping in mind the
previous valuation done.

Post 2012, there has been a general fall in value of realty assets. Other than that,
there is no basis for the fleeting remark made by the auditor. Moreover, auction
of sequestered assets are not done at their original valuation. Reserve Price fixed
for sale is dependent on current market price and a lesser distress sale value.
Bidders fail to turn up mainly because of reasons like locality, dilapidated state of
building, threat by borrowers or their cohorts, lack of direct accessibility to the
plot, etc. In the past one year we put 78 properties to auction, out of which 14
were sold.

The legal procedure to be followed when the account is identified as
NPA is not followed swiftly and within the time prescribed and is
generally late.

This is also a vague remark by the auditor. Our recovery policy specifies the
timing for initiating each recovery step. Borrowers are intimated about it through
Most Important Terms and Conditions (MITC) at the time of sanction itself.
Follow up action starts on first default (SMAQ) and continues throughout the
period of irregularity in the account. There is not a single NPA account where
recovery effort has not been made. Most of the accounts that were written off
earlier are also being pursued for recovery.

Insurance of property mortgaged is not done in all the cases. There is no
policy of the company as regard insurance. In our opinion insurance of
all the properties mortgaged should be done to avoid any loss on
account of damage to property because of natural calamities, disasters
or other reasons.

The credit policy adopted by the Board on 17 April 2018 contains the provision
for insuring mortgaged properties against fire, flood and natural calamities. This
is mandatory in all new sanctions from the date of implementation of the new
policy, i.e. 20 April 2018.

Sd/-
(Manish Singh Payal)
Company Secretary

Sd/-
(Vijay Kumar Singh)
Chief Financial Officer

15

Sd/-
(Y. Srinivasulu)
General Manager

Sd/-
(B.S. Harilal)
Managing Director
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CENT BANK HOME FINANCE LIMITED FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The preparation of financial statements of Cent Bank Home Finance Limited for the year

ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
r the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the

the Comptroller and Auditor General of India

unde

Company. The statutory auditor appointed by

under Section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial

statements under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit in accordance with the

standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have

been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 17 April 2018.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a

supplementary audit under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the financial statements of Cent

Bank Home Finance Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018. This supplementary audit

has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory

auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel

unting records. Based on my supplementary

cant matters under Section 143(6)(b) of

and a selective examination of some of the acco

audit, 1 would like to highlight the following signifi

the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a

better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report.

1. Balance Sheet

Assets
Other Current Assets (Note No. 15): % (88.27 lakh

(b) (iv) Others: X 195.39 lakh

The above includes an amount of ¥121.06 lakh in respect of Direct Selling Agent

Commission (383.43 lakh) and Brokerage (337.63 lakh). As per the policy of the Company,

the commission and charges paid to Marketing Intermediaries were to be amortised but the

amortisation has not been carried out for 2015-16 and the amount has been kept under

‘Other Current Assets’. This has resulted i1 understatement of ‘Prior Period Expenditure’
and overstatement of ‘Other Current Assets’ and ‘Profit before tax’ by ¥121.06 lakh.

Contd.
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2. Additional information on the Financial Statements (Note No. 23)
Reporting under Accounting Standard 15 — Retirement Benefits {Note 23 (36)}

-

a) The Central Government has notified the Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018 on
29 March 2018 and has increased the ceiling of the amount of gratuity payable to employees
from 210 lakh to 220 lakh. However, the Company has not considered the increase in ceiling
amount for creation of provision for payment of gratuity to employees. The financial impact

is not ascertainable by Audit since this is an exercise to be carried out during actuarial

valuation.

b) The above note does not include disclosures regarding defined benefit plans regarding
present value of defined benefit obligations, plan assets, total expenses recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, actuarial gains and losses along with actuarial assumptions

etc., as required under Para 119 and 120 of Accounting Standard 15.

3.  Independent Auditor’s Report

The inadequacies in accounting and disclosure mentioned above under SI.No.1 and 2 have

not been reported by the Statutory Auditor in the Independent Auditor’s Report dated

17.04.2018.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

U‘;L\JVV\A D-
(Vikram D. Murugar:
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-officio Member, Audit Board — 111,
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Dated:eSJuly 2018
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Sl No. and Caption

Comments

Management Reply

Comment No. 1
Balance Sheet

The above includes an amount of Rs. 121.06 lakh in respect of DSA
Commission (Rs. 83.43 lakh) and Brokerage (Rs. 37.63 lakh) which
otherwise should have been amortised in 2015-16 as per the Policy of
the Company in respect of Commission Payable to Marketing
Intermediaries. This has resulted in understatement of ‘Prior Period
Expenditure’ and overstatement of ‘Other Current Assets’ and ‘Profit
for the Year’ by Rs. 121.06 lakh.

An amount of Rs 121.06 Lakh pertaining to 2015-16 was parked in
Other Assets because Statutory Auditor wanted a revisit to these
figures. This entry has been passed in our Book of accounts on 12"
June 2018 and certificate to this effect, signed by the Statutory
Auditor, has been submitted to the CAG. Notional changes in
Tangible Net Worth and CRAR as of 31% Mar 2018 have been made
through revised reporting to NHB on 13" July 2018. Information in
Directors’ Report takes these changes into account.

Assets

Other Current
Assets (Note No.
15): Rs. 688.27
lakh

(b) Others: Rs.
195.39 lakhs
Comment No. 2
Additional
information on
the Financial
Statements (Note
No. 23)
Reporting under
Accounting
Standard 15-
Retirement

Benefits {Note 23
(36)}

a) The Central Government has notified the Payment of Gratuity
(Amendment) Act, 2018 on 29 March 2018 and has increased the
ceiling of the amount of gratuity payable to employees from Rs. 10
lakh to Rs. 20 lakh. This has an impact on the recognition of liability
for past service cost in respect of gratuity provisions for the employees.
However, the Company has not considered this increase while
performing the actuarial valuation of the Gratuity provision which has
resulted in violation of Para 94 of Accounting Standard 15.

b) The above note does not include the disclosures regarding present
value of the defined benefit obligations, plan assets, total expenses
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss account, actuarial gains
and losses along with actuarial assumptions as required under Para 119
and 120 of the Accounting Standard 15.

(@) This amendment came into force on 29™ March 2018. No
individual’s gratuity entitlementin our Company reaches Rs 10 lakh
now or as on 31.03.2018 as per the revised terms. Gratuity
entitlement of all the staff member was submitted to CAG to prove
that the provision made is sufficient. We have also given undertaking
to conduct actuarial valuation as at year end and assess our liability in
the light of the revision in ceiling.

(b) Disclosure as per AS 15 will be complied with from current year.

Comment No. 3
Independent
Auditor’s Report

The inadequacies in accounting and disclosure mentioned above under
Sl. No. 1 and 2 have not been reported by the Statutory Auditor in his
Independent Auditor’s Report dated 17.04.2018.

Statutory Auditor had submitted the following comments to the CAG
on 26" June 2018:-

“Requisite journal entry has been passed in relation to Comment No
1, on 12" June 2018vide voucher no 1/12-6-18/84 from Profit and
Loss Account.

Disclosure of the related matter as per AS 15 mentioned Comment
No 2 will be done in FY 19”.

Date: 26 June 2018
Place: Bhopal

Sd/- Sd/-

Y. Srinivasalu
General Manager

Vijay Kumar Singh
Chief Financial Officer

18

Sd/-

B.S. Harilal
Managing Director
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors of Cent Bank Home Finance Ltd (‘the Company”) renamed and reconstituted the
“Remuneration Committee” as “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” at its 105" Meeting held on August
05,2014 with immediate effect, consisting of three (3) Non-Executive Directors and three (3) independent Directors.

1. OBJECTIVE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto. The Key Objectives of the
Committee would be:

a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Managerial Personnel, Independent
Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

b) To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Managerial Personnel, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

c) To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial
persons and create competitive advantage.

d) To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan;

2. APPLICABILITY

This Policy shall not be applicable to Managerial Personnel who are on deputation from Promoter Institution(s) i.e.
Central Bank of India as a whole. They shall be guided as per the Service Manual of their Institution to the extent not
inconsistent with the Act.

3. DEFINITIONS
a) Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under and as amended from time to time.
b) Board means Board of Directors of the Company.
c) Key Managerial Personnel for the purpose of this policy means only

- Chief Financial Officer;
- Company Secretary

d) Managerial Personnel means Managing Director, Whole Time Director(s), Executive Director(s) or
Manager appointed by the Company pursuant to provisions of section 196 of the Act.

e) Senior Management means personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team
excluding the Board of Directors including Functional Heads.
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4. ROLE OF COMMITTEE
The Committee shall:

o |dentify persons who are qualified to become Managerial personnel, Independent Director (IDs) and
persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial and Senior Management positions in
accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.

e Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Managerial personnel, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel.

o Annual review of the performance of Managerial Personnel

5. POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, IDS, KMP AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

(i) Appointment criteria and qualifications

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience
of the person for appointment as Managerial Personnel, Independent Director, KMP or at
Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his/her appointment.

b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position
he/she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient/satisfactory for the
concerned position.

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any Managerial Personnel who
has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position
may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing
a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such
motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

(i) Term/Tenure
Managing Director/Whole-time Director/Executive Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director or Executive
Director or a Whole Time Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment
shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

Independent Director:
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- An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board
of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

- No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing
to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not during
the aforesaid period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in
any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

- Independent Directors shall be issued an appointment letters in the format enclosed as
Annexure-l and they shall abide by the code of conduct as specified under Schedule IV of the
Companies Act, 2013, which is enclosed as Annexure-Il.

(iii) Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Managerial Personnel at regular
intervals on annual basis.

(iv) Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act,
rules and regulations there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with
reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Managerial Personnel, Independent Directors
subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

(V) Retirement

The Managerial Personnel, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the
applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have
the discretion to retain the Managerial Personnel, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in
the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the
benefit of the Company as per the applicable provisions of Act and prevailing policy of the
Company.

6. POLICY RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION FOR MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
(i) General:

The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. to the Managerial Personnel, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for
approval.
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The Committee while determining the remuneration shall ensure the following

e The level of composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
Managerial Personnel of the quality required to run the Company successfully.

e Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

¢ Remuneration to Managerial Personnel, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives of the
Company.

(i) Remuneration to Managerial Personnel, KMP_and Senior Management Personnel:

a) Fixed pay:

The Managerial Personnel, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a
monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer's
contribution to P.F, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board/
the Chairman on the recommendation of the Committee and then approved by the shareholders
and Central Government, wherever required.

b) Variable pay:

The Managerial Personnel, KMP and Senior Management will also be eligible for Variable
Compensation linked to performance as per the terms of their appointment. Payment modalities for
Variable Compensation shall be decided by the Board on the recommendations of the Committee after
submission of performance report. The Variable Compensation will be paid per annum unless
otherwise decided by the Board.

c) Minimum Remuneration for Managerial Personnel:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall
pay remuneration to its Managerial Personnel in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of
the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central
Government.

d) Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any
such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction of the Central
Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is
refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum
refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government.
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(iii) Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

a) Sitting Fees:

The Non-Executive/lndependent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending
meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed
Rs.One Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the
Central Government from time to time.

b) Stock Options:
An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

7. MEMBERSHIP

a) The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors out of which not less than one half
shall be independent directors

b) The quorum for the meeting shall be 1/3 of total strength or 2 members whichever is higher

¢) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

d) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.

8. CHAIRPERSON

a) Chairperson of the Committee shall be Non-Executive Director

b) Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a
Chairman of the Committee.

c) In the absence of the Chairperson, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose
one amongst them to act as Chairperson.

d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the
Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

9. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.
10. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS

a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the
meetings of the Committee.
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ANNEXURE-|
SPECIMEN
LETTER OF APPOINTMENT TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

Dated:

Sub: Appointment Letter

Dear Sir,

We are pleased to inform you that the Members of the Company at the .... Annual General Meeting
(AGM) held on ............... have appointed your goodself as an Independent Director of the Company for a
period of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f. ...........i.e. the date of the ....Annual General Meeting (AGM) of
the Company.

The terms and conditions of your appointment are as follows-

1. Term of Appointment: 5 (Five) Years w.e.f. ..........(Date of AGM)

2. Role and functions:

Your role and functions shall be guided as per the Code for Independent Directors (Schedule IV)
pursuant to Section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, which have been stipulated as under:

a)

b)
c)

d)
e)

f)
g)

Bringing an independent judgment to bear on the Board’s deliberations especially on issues of
strategy, performance, risk management, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct;
Bringing an objective view in the evaluation of the performance of board and management;
Scrutinizing the performance of management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and
monitoring the reporting of performance;

Satisfying oneself on the integrity of financial information and that financial controls and the
systems of risk management are robust and defensible;

Safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders, particularly the minority shareholders;

Balancing the conflicting interest of the stakeholders;

Determining appropriate levels of remuneration of executive directors, key managerial personnel
and senior management and have a prime role in appointing and where necessary
recommending removal of executive directors, key managerial personnel and senior
management.
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h) Moderating and arbitrating in the interest of the company as a whole, in situations of conflict
between management and shareholder’s interest.

3. The Board expects a time commitment from your goodself which would include the following:

a) You shall strive to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Board Committees of
which you are a Member;

b) You shall participate constructively and actively in the Committees of the Board in which you are
a Chairperson or Member;

c) You shall strive to attend the general meetings of the Company.

d) You shall be intimated in advance of the date, time and venue of the meetings of the Board or
Committee thereof in which you are a member and Annual General Meeting and general
meetings, if any, for attending the said meetings.

4. While performing your duties as an Independent Director, the Board expects you to:

a) seek appropriate clarification or amplification of information and, where necessary, take and
follow appropriate professional advice and opinion of outside experts at the expense of the
Company;

b) ensure, where you have concerns about the running of the Company or a proposed action, that
these are addressed by the Board and, to the extent that they are not resolved, insist that
concerns are recorded in the minutes of the Board meeting;

c) keep yourself well informed about the company and the external environment in which it
operates;

d) not to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or Committee of the Board;

e) pay sufficient attention and ensure that adequate deliberations are held before approving related
party transactions and assure that the same are in the interest of the Company;

f) ascertain and ensure that the Company has an adequate and functional vigil mechanism and to
ensure that the interests of a person who uses such mechanism are not prejudicially affected on
account of such use;

g) report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Company's code of conduct or ethics policy;

h) act within authority, assist in protecting the legitimate interests of the Company, shareholders and
its employees;

i) not disclose confidential information, including commercial secrets, technologies, advertising and
sales promotion plans, unpublished price sensitive information, unless such disclosure is expressly
approved by the Board or required by law;

j) Constructively challenge and contribute to the development of overall strategy of the Company.

5. The Independent Directors are expected to:

a) abide by the Code for Independent Directors as specified under Schedule IV to the Companies Act,
2013 including any amendment thereof in future.
b) follow the below mentioned professional conduct as an Independent Director of the Company:
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i. Uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity;

ii. Act objectively and constructively while exercising your duties;

iii. Exercise responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the Company;

iv. Devote sufficient time and attention to your professional obligations for informed and
balanced decision making;

v. Where circumstances arise which make an Independent Director lose his independence, the
Independent Director must immediately inform the Board accordingly;

vi. Assist the Company in implementing the best corporate governance practices.

6. Remuneration:

a)

b)

You shall be paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board or any Committee thereof
or for any other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board from time to time;

You shall be reimbursed the expenses for participation in the Board and other Committee
meetings;

7. Discontinuation:

a)

b)

c)

Your Directorship on the Board of the Company shall terminate or cease in accordance with law
or in accordance with provisions contained in the Articles (as may be amended from time to
time). You may resign from the Directorship of the Company by giving a notice in writing to the
Company stating the reasons for resignation. The resignation shall take effect from the date on
which the notice is received by the Company or the date, if any, specified by you in the notice,
whichever is later;

If, at any stage during the term of your Directorship, there is a change that may affect your
status as an Independent Director as envisaged in Section 149(6) of the Act, or if applicable, you
fail to meet the criteria for ‘independence’ you agree to promptly submit your resignation to the
Company with effect from the date of such change. You shall also promptly submit your
resignation to the Company as and when the Board of Directors by majority decision pass a
resolution to that effect;

Upon such termination or resignation for any reason or on not having been reappointed by the
shareholders for any reason, you shall not be entitled to any damages or compensation for loss
of office or otherwise and no fee or remuneration or commission, as the case may be, will be
payable to you in respect of any unexpired portion of the term of your appointment.

8. Others:

You shall give annual declaration as required under the provision of Section 149(7) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. Besides above, you shall provide
disclosure of interest as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder
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The Appointment Letter is issued based on the Companies Act, 2013, Rules framed thereunder
prevalent at the time of appointment. Any change in the above shall automatically entail changes in the
terms and conditions.

We look forward for your valuable contribution and guidance to the growth of the Company.

Thanking you.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Managing Director
Cent Bank Home Finance Ltd

| have read and agree to the above terms regarding my appointment as an Independent Director of Cent
Bank Home Finance Limited

MFE/MIS. e
Independent Director
(DIN: e, ) Dated
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ANNEXURE-II

SCHEDULE IV
[See section 149(8)]
CODE FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Code is a guide to professional conduct for independent directors. Adherence to these standards by
independent directors and fulfillment of their responsibilities in a professional and faithful manner will promote
confidence of the investment community, particularly minority shareholders, regulators and companies in the
institution of independent directors.

I. Guidelines of professional conduct:

An independent director shall:

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)

uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity;

act objectively and constructively while exercising his duties;

exercise his responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the company;

devote sufficient time and attention to his professional obligations for informed and balanced decision
making;

not allow any extraneous considerations that will vitiate his exercise of objective independent judgment
in the paramount interest of the company as a whole, while concurring in or dissenting from the collective
judgment of the Board in its decision making;

not abuse his position to the detriment of the company or its shareholders or for the purpose of gaining
direct or indirect personal advantage or advantage for any associated person;

refrain from any action that would lead to loss of his independence;

where circumstances arise which make an independent director lose his independence, the independent
director must immediately inform the Board accordingly;

assist the company in implementing the best corporate governance practices.

Il. Role and functions:

The independent directors shall:

(1)

(2)
(3)

help in bringing an independent judgment to bear on the Board’s deliberations especially on issues of
strategy, performance, risk management, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct;

bring an objective view in the evaluation of the performance of board and management;

scrutinise the performance of management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the
reporting of performance;

(4) satisfy themselves on the integrity of financial information and that financial controls and the systems of
risk management are robust and defensible;

(5) safeguard the interests of all stakeholders, particularly the minority shareholders;

(6) balance the conflicting interest of the stakeholders;

(7) determine appropriate levels of remuneration of executive directors, key managerial personnel and
senior management and have a prime role in appointing and where necessary recommend removal of
executive directors, key managerial personnel and senior management;

(8) moderate and arbitrate in the interest of the company as a whole, in situations of conflict between
management and shareholder’s interest.

lll. Duties:

The independent directors shall—
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undertake appropriate induction and regularly update and refresh their skills, knowledge and familiarity
with the company;

seek appropriate clarification or amplification of information and, where necessary, take and follow
appropriate professional advice and opinion of outside experts at the expense of the company;

strive to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Board committees of which he is a
member;

participate constructively and actively in the committees of the Board in which they are chairpersons or
members;

strive to attend the general meetings of the company;

where they have concerns about the running of the company or a proposed action, ensure that these are
addressed by the Board and, to the extent that they are not resolved, insist that their concerns are
recorded in the minutes of the Board meeting;

keep themselves well informed about the company and the external environment in which it operates;
not to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or committee of the Board;

pay sufficient attention and ensure that adequate deliberations are held before approving related party
transactions and assure themselves that the same are in the interest of the company;

(10) ascertain and ensure that the company has an adequate and functional vigil mechanism and to ensure

that the interests of a person who uses such mechanism are not prejudicially affected on account of such
use;

(11) report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s code

of conduct or ethics policy;

(12) acting within his authority, assist in protecting the legitimate interests of the company, shareholders and

its employees;

(13) not disclose confidential information, including commercial secrets, technologies, advertising and sales

promotion plans, unpublished price sensitive information, unless such disclosure is expressly approved by
the Board or required by law.

IV. Manner of appointment:

(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)

Appointment process of independent directors shall be independent of the company management; while

selecting independent directors the Board shall ensure that there is appropriate balance of skills,

experience and knowledge in the Board so as to enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties

effectively.

The appointment of independent director(s) of the company shall be approved at the meeting of the

shareholders.

The explanatory statement attached to the notice of the meeting for approving the appointment of

independent director shall include a statement that in the opinion of the Board, the independent director

proposed to be appointed fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made there under and

that the proposed director is independent of the management.

The appointment of independent directors shall be formalised through a letter of appointment, which

shall set out :

(a) the term of appointment;

(b) the expectation of the Board from the appointed director; the Board-level committee(s) in which the
director is expected to serve and its tasks;

(c) the fiduciary duties that come with such an appointment along with accompanying liabilities;

(d) provision for Directors and Officers (D and O) insurance, if any;

(e) the Code of Business Ethics that the company expects its directors and employees to follow;

(f) the list of actions that a director should not do while functioning as such in the company; and
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(g) the remuneration, mentioning periodic fees, reimbursement of expenses for participation in the
Boards and other meetings and profit related commission, if any.
(5) The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors shall be open for inspection at the
registered office of the company by any member during normal business hours.

(6) The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors shall also be posted on the company’s
website.

V. Re-appointment:

The re-appointment of independent director shall be on the basis of report of performance evaluation.

VI. Resignation or removal:

(1) The resignation or removal of an independent director shall be in the same manner as is provided in
sections 168 and 169 of the Act.

(2) Anindependent director who resigns or is removed from the Board of the company shall be replaced by a
new independent director within a period of not more than one hundred and eighty days from the date of
such resignation or removal, as the case may be.

(3) Where the company fulfils the requirement of independent directors in its Board even without filling the

vacancy created by such resignation or removal, as the case may be, the requirement of replacement by a
new independent director shall not apply.

VII. Separate meetings:

(1) The independent directors of the company shall hold at least one meeting in a year, without the
attendance of non-independent directors and members of management;
(2) All the independent directors of the company shall strive to be present at such meeting;
(3) The meeting shall:
(a) review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;
(b) review the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of executive
directors and non-executive directors;
(c) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

VIII. Evaluation mechanism:

(1) The performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors,
excluding the director being evaluated.

(2) On the basis of the report of performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or
continue the term of appointment of the independent director
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Annexure-lll
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
[Pursuant to clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. A Brief Outline of CSR Policy, including overview of projects and programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the web link to the CSR Policy and projects or program
Company’s CSR Policy is available on the Weblink: http://www.cbhfl.com/csr_rules.php

The Board in its 105" Board Meeting held on August 5", 2014 adopted CSR Policy of the
Company in terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

a) The Company endeavors to contribute to CSR activities as specified under Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013. A corpus with an amount not exceeding 2% of the Average Net
Profits* of the Company made during the 3 (Three) immediately preceding financial years
will be made for this purpose as per the provisions of the Act and rules made there under.

e Average Net Profits means- Net Profit calculated in terms of section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the last three financial years.

b) As a part of CSR program the Company plans to focus on the following activities:

i) Communal Development Projects as enumerated in CSR POLICY;

ii) Contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or other fund set-
up by the Central Government or the State-Governments for the socio-
economic developments and relief and funds for the welfare of the
Scheduled Castes, Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and
women.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

The CSR Committee comprises of total 4 members with 1 Non-Executive Independent Director, 2
Non Executive Directors and 1 Executive Director. The following are the Committee Members as on
31° March, 2018:

1 Shri. Anil Girotra- Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman
2 Shri P. J. Kumar-Non-Executive Director Member
3 Shri Vineet Singhal- Non Executive Director Member
4 Shri. B. S. Harilal- Managing Director Member

3. Average net profit of the company for last three immediately preceding financial years: Net
profits for the last three years have been calculated in terms of the provisions of section 198 of
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the Companies Act, 2013. The Avg.Net profits of the Company for the last three financial years
are as under:

(in Rs.)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
Net profit under section 198 16,34,58,095 17,34,31,562 15,85,36,736
Avg.Net Profit 16,51,42,131
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2%) 33,02,843

3. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

(a) Prescribed CSR Expenditure
(i) For the financial year 2017-18

(b) Total CSR expenses incurred/spent during the year

:-Rs.33, 02,843.00

:- Rs.33,02,843.00

(c) Amount unspent, if any 0
(d) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.
. Amount Amount
Projects or
outlay spent on
programs
(budget) the
(1) Local . .
project or projects or
area or
Sector th programs programs Cumulative Amount
other
. in . wise Sub - expenditur spent :
CSR project . (2) Specify .
S. o which heads: e upto to Direct or
or activity the State .
No. . . the o (1) Direct the through
identified . and district ] ) . .
Project expenditur reporting implementi
. where .
is covered . eon period ng agency*
projects or .
projects or
programs
programs
was
(2)
undertaken
Overheads
Contribution | Contribution
01 Contribution | to AIIMS for | to AIIMS for Rs. Rs. Rs. Direct on
to AlIMS Scientific Scientific 33,02,843 | 33,02,843 | 33,02,843 | 29.03.2018
research research

4. The CSR committee and the Board will review the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy
at periodical intervals and shall ensure that it is in compliance and in accordance with CSR
objectives and Policy of the Company.

Sd/- Sd/-
Anil Girotra B. S. Harilal
Place :Mumbai Independent Director Managing Director
Date : 13.08.2018 DIN:02221989 DIN: 07886919
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Form No. AOC-2

Annexure-1V

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangement or transaction not at arm’s length basis

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31

March, 2018 which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

LOANS AVAILED FROM RELATED PARTIES

Name(s) of Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of the Amount of loan
the related contracts/ contracts/ contracts or
party and Arrangement/ | Arrangement/ arrangement or
nature of Transaction Transaction transaction including
relationship the value, if any:
Central bank OD facility Revised time to Charge is created by Rs.100.00 Crs
of India, time way of specific lien on
Holding book debts of 1:1
Company times. Rate of interest
is Base rate/MCLR
Central Bank Fresh Term Term loan Charge is created by Rs.100.00 Crs
of India, Loan facility repayable in 28 way of specific lien on
Holding gtly installments | book debts of 1:1
Company times. Rate of interest
is Base rate/ MCLR
Central Bank Fresh Term Term loan Charge is created by Rs. 100.00 Crs
of India, Loan facility repayable in 60 way of specific lien on
Holding monthly book debts of 1:1
Company installments times. Rate of interest
is Base rate/MCLR
Central Bank Fresh Term Term loan Charge is created by Rs. 100.00 Crs
of India, Loan facility repayable in 60 way of specific lien on
Holding monthly book debts of 1:1
Company installments times. Rate of interest

is Base rate/MCLR
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National Refinance Limit | Repayable in 60 Charge is created by Rs. 100.00 Crs
Housing Bank, quarterly way of specific lien on
Promoter installments book debts of 1:1.20
Institution times. Rate of interest
will be applicable rate
from time to time
National Refinance Limit | Repayable in 60 Charge is created by Rs.50 Crs
Housing Bank, quarterly way of specific lien on
Promoter installments book debts of 1:1.20
Institution times. Rate of interest
will be applicable rate
from time to time
National Refinance Limit | Repayable in 60 Charge is created by Rs.50 Crs
Housing Bank, quarterly way of specific lien on
Promoter installments book debts of 1:1.20
Institution times. Rate of interest
will be applicable rate
from time to time
National Refinance Limit | Repayable in 60 Charge is created by Rs.50 Crs
Housing Bank, quarterly way of specific lien on
Promoter installments book debts of 1:1.20
Institution times. Rate of interest
will be applicable rate
from time to time
National Refinance Limit | Repayable in 60 Charge is created by Rs.100Crs
Housing Bank, quarterly way of specific lien on
Promoter installments book debts of 1:1.20
Institution times. Rate of interest
will be applicable rate
from time to time

REMUNERATION PAID/PAYABLE TO MANAGING DIRECTOR

Name(s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the contracts or Amount
the related contracts/ the contracts/ | arrangement or transaction paid
party and Arrangement/ | Arrangement/ | including the value, if any: during the
nature of Transaction Transaction year
relationship
Mr. Sanjay Appointment as | 1 year with As per the Central Bank of India
Mallik, Managing effect from (Officers’) Service Regulations Rs.4.53
Managing Director of the | 27/12/2016 & lakhs
Director Company date of

cessation is

31/07/2017
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Name(s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the contracts or Amount
the related contracts/ the contracts/ | arrangement or transaction paid

party and Arrangement/ | Arrangement/ | including the value, if any: during the
nature of Transaction Transaction year
relationship

Mr. B.S. Appointment as | 5 years with As per the Central Bank of India Rs.9.54
Harilal, Managing effect from (Officers’) Service Regulations lakhs
Managing Director of the | 31/08/2017

Director Company

REIMBURESEMENT OF SALARY & PERQUISITES OF STAFF ON DEPUTATION FROM CENTRAL BANK
OF INDIA, HOLDING COMPANY

Name(s) of Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of Amount paid
the related contracts/ contracts/ the contracts or During the year
party and Arrangement/ | Arrangement/ arrangement or
nature of Transaction Transaction transaction
relationship including the
value, if any:

Central Bank Reimbursement | As long as Staff will be on the | Rs.9.28 lakhs
of India, of salaries & company remains | roles of Central
Holding perquisites of subsidiary of Bank of India and
Company staff of holding | Central Bank of will be under

company on India service conditions

deputation to of the said Bank.

the company Bank may

withdraw their
staff at any point of
time and replace
with others.

PREMISES MAINTENANCE CHARGES PAID/PAYABLE TO CENTRAL BANK OF INDIA, HOLDING
COMPANY

Name(s) of Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of Amount paid
the related contracts/ contracts/ the contracts or During the year
party and Arrangement/ | Arrangement/ arrangement or
nature of Transaction Transaction transaction
relationship including the
value, if any:
Central Bank Sub-letting part | Nil Bank shall recover | Rs. 12.00 lacs
of India, of its premises maintenance
Holding to the charges at a rate of
Company Registered Rs.1 lakh PM
Office of the excluding
Company at electricity charges
Bhopal for an area of 3500
Sq.ft, which is
payable on

Quarterly basis.
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Central Bank Sub-letting part | Nil Bank shall recover | Rs.60,000
of India, of its premises maintenance
Holding to the Branch charges at a rate of
Company Office of the Rs.5000 PM
Company at excluding
Belapur, electricity charges
Mumbai for an area of 700
Sq.ft, which is
payable on
Quarterly basis.
Central Bank Sub-letting part | Nil Bank shall recover | Rs. 6,02,580

of India, of its premises

Holding to the Branch

Company Office of the
Company at
Pune

maintenance
charges at a rate of
Rs.50215 PM
excluding
electricity charges
for an area of 728
Sq.ft, which is
payable on
Quarterly basis.

ACCEPTANCE OF DEPOSITS FROM
HOLDING COMPANY

THE INSTITUTIONS PROMOTED BY CENTRAL BANK OF INDIA,

Name(s) of Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of Amount
the related contracts/ contracts/ the contracts or
party and Arrangement/ | Arrangement/ arrangement or
nature of Transaction Transaction transaction
relationship including the
value, if any:

Central Acceptance of Deposit accepted | Amount maturing Rs. 17,83,49,872
Madhya Deposits from for the tenure of | on 30/09/2018 at
Pradesh the Institution 359 days on ROI 7.5%
Gramin Bank promoted by 07/10/2017.

the Holding

Company
Uttarbanga Acceptance of Deposit accepted | Amount maturing Rs. 10,00,00,000
Kshetriya Deposits from for the tenure of | on 03/02/2020 at

the Institution
promoted by

Gramin Bank

39 months on
10/11/2016.

ROI 8.50%

the Holding

Company
Uttarbanga Acceptance of
Kshetriya Deposits from

the Institution
promoted by
the Holding
Company

Gramin Bank

Deposit accepted
for the tenure of
39 months on
02/12/2016.

Amount maturing
on 17/02/2020 at
ROI 8.50%

Rs. 30,00,00,000
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Uttarbanga
Kshetriya
Gramin Bank

Acceptance of
Deposits from
the Institution
promoted by
the Holding
Company

Deposit accepted
for the tenure of
39 months on
31/12/2016.

Amount maturing
on 29/03/2020 at
ROI 8.30%

Rs. 50,00,00,000

Uttarbanga Acceptance of Deposit accepted | Amount maturing Rs.20,00,00,000
Kshetriya Deposits from for the tenure of | on 02/04/2020 at
Gramin Bank the Institution 39 months on ROI 8.30%
promoted by 18/01/2017.
the Holding
Company
For and On Behalf of the Board
Sd/- Sd/-
P. Ramana Murthy B.S. Harilal

Place :Mumbai
Date  :1308.2018

Chairman

DIN 07815852
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Managing Director
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Annexure-1V

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION POLICY

Cent Bank Home Finance Limited recognizes that related party transactions present a potential or actual
risk of conflicts of interest (or the perception thereof) and therefore the Company has adopted this
policy, under which all Related Party Transactions will be subject to approval or ratification in
accordance with the procedures set forth in this policy.

1) Definitions:

i) Related Party: [section 2(76)]
With reference to company, Related Party would mean and include the following:

e Adirector or his relative;

e Key Managerial Personnel or their relative;

e Afirm in which a director / manager or his relative is a partner;

e A private company in which a director or manager is a director or holds along with his relatives,
more than 2% of its paid-up share capital;

® A person on whose advice, directions or instruction (except given in professional capacity) a
director or manager is a accustomed to act;

* A holding / subsidiary or associate company, subsidiary’s subsidiary and such person as would
be prescribed.

i) Relative: [section 2(77)]

For the purposes of this policy and pursuant to Rule 4 of the Companies (Specification of Definitions,
Details) Rules, 2014 provides that a person shall be deemed to be the relative of another if he or she
is related to another in the following manner, namely:

- Father (including step father);

- Mother (including step mother);
- Son (including step-son);

- Son’s wife;

- Daughter;

- Daughter’s husband;

- Brother (including step-brother);
- Sister (including step-sister).

iii) Key Managerial Personnel: [section 2(51)]
In relation to a company, Key Managerial Personnel means the following:
- The Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;

- The Company Secretary;
- The Whole-time director;
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2)

3)

The Chief Financial Officer;
and such other officer as may be prescribed.

Related Party Transactions

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, the following transactions are liable to be
treated as Related Party Transactions:

Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

Leasing of property of any kind;

Availing or rendering of any services;

Appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or property;

Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in the Company, its subsidiary
company or associate company;

Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the company;

Provided that nothing in this section shall apply to any transactions entered into by the company in
its ordinary course of business other than transactions which are not on an arm’s length basis.

Procedures:

® The Audit Committee of the Board of the Company will review the relevant facts and

circumstances of each Related Party Transaction, including if the transaction is on terms
comparable to those that could be obtained in arm’s length dealings with an unrelated third party
and the extent of the Related Party’s interest in the transaction, take into account the conflicts of
interest and either approve or disapprove the Related Party Transaction.

Any Related Party Transaction that would be entered into and would continue only if the Audit
Committee has approved or ratified such transaction in accordance with the guidelines set forth in
this policy.

If advance approval of a Related Party Transaction requiring the Audit Committee’s approval, is
not practicable, then the transaction may be preliminarily entered into by management subject to
ratification of the transaction by the Audit Committee at the Audit Committee’s next regularly
scheduled meeting; provided that if ratification will not be done, management will make all
reasonable efforts to cancel or annul such transaction.

Management will present to the Audit Committee each proposed Related Party Transaction,
including all relevant facts and circumstances, and will update the Audit Committee as to any
material changes to an approved or ratified Related Party Transaction and will provide a status
report annually at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Audit Committee, of all then current
Related Party Transactions.

No director shall participate in approval of a Related Party Transaction for which he or she is a
Related Party.
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Approval of Shareholders in certain transactions

Except with the prior approval of Shareholders by a resolution, company shall not enter into
aforesaid related party transaction or transactions, if they meet with below criteria which is
subject to the provisions of the Act and Rules made there under —

(i) Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, directly or through appointment of
agent, exceeding ten percent of the turnover of the company or rupees one hundred
crore, whichever is lower, as mentioned in clause (a) and clause (e) respectively of sub-
section (1) of section 188;

(ii) Selling or otherwise disposing of or buying property of any kind, directly or through
appointment of agent, exceeding ten per cent. of net worth of the company or rupees one
hundred crore, whichever is lower, as mentioned in clause (b) and clause (e) respectively
of sub-section (1) of section 188;

(iii) Leasing of property of any kind exceeding ten percent of the net worth of the company or
ten percent. of turnover of the company or rupees one hundred crore, whichever is lower,
as mentioned in clause (c) of sub-section (1) of section 188;

(iv) Availing or rendering of any services, directly or through appointment of agent, exceeding
ten per cent. of the turnover of the company or rupees fifty crore, whichever is lower, as
mentioned in clause (d) and clause (e) respectively of sub-section (1) of section 188:

(v) In case it is for appointment to any office or place of profit in the company, its subsidiary
company or associate company at a monthly remuneration exceeding two and half lakh
rupees as mentioned in clause (f) of subsection (1) of section 188; or

(vi) In case it is for remuneration for underwriting the subscription of any securities or
derivatives thereof, of the company exceeding one percent of the net worth as mentioned
in clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 188.

4) Pre-Approved Transactions:

The Audit Committee has reviewed and pre-approved each of the following types of Related Party
Transactions, which will be deemed to be approved or ratified, as applicable under this policy:

a) Managerial Remuneration

- To Managing Director of the Company if the remuneration is required to be
reported/circulated to the shareholders pursuant to requirement of the Companies Act,
2013 and such remuneration has been approved, or recommended to the Company’s Board
of Directors for approval, by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company; or
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- To Key Managerial Personnel if the remuneration is required to be reported / circulated to
the shareholders pursuant to requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and such
remuneration has been approved, or recommended to the Company’s Board of Directors for
approval, by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company.

b) Transactions that are in the Company’s ordinary course of business such as the following:

Borrowing or Raising of funds in the nature of deposits, NCD, Bonds (Tier | or Il, subordinate
etc) including Term loans, OD facilities & other credit facilities for business of the company
from the promoter(s) & their Associate Companies (including Body Corporates), repayment
/ payment of interest or principal towards secured or unsecured loans, deposits. Issue of
equity shares, PTC and payment of interest or other return on such subscription

c) Transactions that are in the nature of payment of rent, dividend, reimbursement of
municipal taxes, reimbursement of electricity expenses, reimbursement of gratuity for staff
on deputation from promoter(s) including payment for staff training, conference and
towards renovation and repairs either to promoter or subsidiary or associate.

d) Transactions that are in the nature of payment/reimbursement of rent, municipal taxes,
electricity expenses with respect to premises of Promoters occupied by the branches/Head
Office of the Company.

Disclosure:

All Related Party Transactions are to be disclosed in the Company’s applicable returns/report as
required by the Companies Act, 2013. Furthermore, any material Related Party Transactions will be
disclosed to the Board of Directors.

Other Agreements:

Management will assure that all Related Party Transactions are not in violation of and are approved in
accordance with any requirements of the Company’s financing or other material agreements.
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Annexure-V
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31° March, 2018
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

0 |an - U65922MP1991PLC006427
(i) | Registration Date - 07/05/1991
(iii) Name of the company: :- Cent Bank Home Finance Limited

i Category/Sub-Category of the
(iv) gory/ gory :- Public Company/Company having Share Capital

company
:- Central Bank of India, 9,Arera Hills, Mother
(v) Address of the Registered office and Teresa Road, Bhopal —462 011
contact details Tel No:- 0755-4019303;
Email-1d:- manish.payal@cbhfl.com
(vi) Whether listed company :-No

:- M/s. Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd.
(vii) | Name ,Address and Contact details of | 17-24, Vittal Rao Nagar, Madhapur

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:- Hyderabad — 500 081
Tel No:-040-23420815 - 24

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company
shall be stated:-

S. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
product/services product/services of the company
1 Housing Finance/Mortgage Loans 65923 100%

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING,SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. No. Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/ % Of Shares Applicable
of the Company Subsidiary/ Held Section
Associate
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1 Central Bank of India | Not Applicable Holding 64.40% 2(46)
Central Office
Chandermukhi,
Nariman Point,
Mumbai—400 021

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of shareholders No. of shares held at the No. of the Shares held at the end of %
Beginning of the year the year change
during
the
year
Demat | Physical | Total % of | Demat | Physical | Total % of
Total Total
shares shares

A. PROMOTERS

(1) Indian

(a)Individual /HUF - - - - - - - R R

(b) Central Govt - - - - - - - _ R

(c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - R _

(d) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - R R

(e) Bank/FI 7200000 | 17800000 | 25000000 100% 7200000 | 17800000 | 25000000 100% Nil

(f) Any other.. - - - - - - - R -

Sub-Total(A)(1) | 7200000 | 17800000 | 25000000 | 100% | 7200000 | 17800000 | 25000000 | 100% | Nil

(2) Foreign

a)NRlIs Individuals - - - - - - - - -

b) Other-Individuals - - - - - - - R .

c)Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

d)Bank/FL - - - - - - - R .

e) Any Others. - - - - - - - -

Sub-Total(A)(2) | - - - - - - - R -

Total shareholding of | 7200000 | 17800000 | 25000000 100% 7200000 | 17800000 | 25000000 100% Nil

promoter
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

B.Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - R -

b)Bank/FL - - - - - - - - .

c) Central Govt -- - - - - - - - .

d)State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - R

e) Venture Capital funds | - - - - - - - - -

f)Insurance companies - - - - - - - - -

g) Flls - - - - - - - - -

h) Foreign Venture | - - - - - - - R -
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Capital Funds
i) Others (Specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total(B)(1):- | - - - - - - - N R

2.Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - R R
i) Indian - - - - - - - R -
ii) Overseas - - - - - R - . R
b)Individuals
i) Individual - - - - - - - R .
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual - - - - - - - R -
shareholders holding
nominal share capital

in excess of Rs.1 lakh
c) Others (Specify) -- - - - - - - . R
Sub-total (B)(2) | - - - - - R . R R
Total Public Shareholding | - - - - - - - - -
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C)Shares held by Custodian | - - - - - - - - -
for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) | 7200000 | 17800000 | 25000000 | 100% | 7200000 | 17800000 | 25000000 | 100% | Nil

ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S. Shareholders’ Shareholdings at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year
No. Name year
No of % of total % of Shares No. of % of % of Shares | %changes
Shares Shares of Pledged/ Shares total Pledged/ In share
the encumbered Shares of | encumbered holding
company to total the to total during the
shares company shares year
1 Central Bank 16100000 64.40 Nil 16100000 64.40 Nil Nil
of India
2 National 4000000 16.00 Nil 4000000 16.00 Nil Nil
Housing Bank
3 SUUTI 3200000 12.80 Nil 3200000 12.80 Nil Nil
4 HUDCO 1700000 6.80 Nil 1700000 6.80 Nil Nil
Total | 25000000 100.00 Nil 25000000 100.00 Nil Nil
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(iii) Changes in Promoters Shareholding (Please specify if there is no change)

Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Share holding during
the year
No of shares % of the total No of % of the total
shares of the shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 25000000 100.00 | 25000000 100.00
Data wise Increase/Decrease in Nil Nil -
Promoters Share Holding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease
(e.g. Allotment/
Transfer/bonus/
Sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year 25000000 100.00 | 25000000 100.00

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs

and ADRs):

Shareholding at the beginning of
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the

No of shares % of the total
shares of the
company

No of
shares

% of the total shares of
the company

At the beginning of the year

Data wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Share Holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease
(e.g. Allotment/
Transfer/bonus/
Sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year(or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year)

NIL

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the

No. of shares % of the total No of % of the total shares of
Shri B.K. Divakara & Central shares of the shares the company
Bank of India company
At the beginning of the year 20 0.00 20 0.00

Data wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Share Holding during
the year specifying the reasons
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for increase/decrease
(e.g. Allotment/
Transfer/bonus/
Sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year(or on the 20 0.00 20 0.00
date of separation, if separated
during the year)

Shri Narender Singh & Central
Bank of India

At the beginning of the year 20 0.00 20 0.00

Data wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Share Holding during

the year specifying the reasons Decrease in Shareholding due to Transfer of 20 shares to Shri R.N. Hirve

for increase/decrease on 31/08/2017
(e.g. Allotment/
Transfer/bonus/
Sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year(or on the 0 0.00 0 0.00

date of separation, if separated
during the year)

Shri Sanjay Mallik & Central
Bank of India

At the beginning of the year 60 0.00 60 0.00

Data wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Share Holding during
the year specifying the reasons

for increase/decrease Decrease in Shareholding due to Transfer of 30 shares each to Shri P. J.
(e.g. Allotment/ Kumar and to Shri B. S. Harilal on 31/08/2017
Transfer/bonus/
Sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year(or on the 0 0.00 0 0.00

date of separation, if separated
during the year)

Shri R. N. Hirve & Central Bank
of India

At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 00 0.00

Data wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Share Holding during

the year specifying the reasons Increase in Shareholding due to Transfer of 20 shares of Shri Narender

for increase/decrease Singh on 31/08/2017
(e.g. Allotment/

Transfer/bonus/
Sweat equity etc)
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At the end of the year(or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year)

20

0.00

20

0.00

Shri P. J. Kumar & Central Bank
of India

At the beginning of the year

0.00

0.00

Data wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Share Holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease
(e.g. Allotment/
Transfer/bonus/
Sweat equity etc)

Increase in Shareholding due to Transfer of 30 shares of Shri Sanjay Mallik

on 31/08/2017

At the end of the year(or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year)

30

0.00

30

0.00

Shri B. S. Harilal & Central Bank
of India

At the beginning of the year

0.00

0.00

Data wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Share Holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease
(e.g. Allotment/
Transfer/bonus/
Sweat equity etc)

Increase in Shareholding due to Transfer of 30 shares of of Shri Sanjay

Mallik on 31/08/2017

At the end of the year(or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year)

30

0.00

30

0.00

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
Excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans
Excluding
deposits

Deposits
(unsecured)

Indebtedness

Total

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid
iii)Interest accrued but not
due

Total (i+ii+iii)

5572683628

Rs.300000000

Rs 6805849019

Rs. 12678532647
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Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year

e Addition Rs .559799646

e Reduction

Rs.10706901782

Rs. 10198323747

Rs. 1937200117

Rs.11266701428

Rs.12135523864

Net Changes

Rs.508578035

Rs.1377400471

Rs.868822436

Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year
i)Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid
iii)Interest accrued but not
due

Rs.6081261663

Rs.300000000

Rs.5428448548

Rs. 11809710211

Total (i+ii+iii)

6081261663

Rs. 300000000

Rs.5428448548

Rs. 11809710211

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whele-Fime Directors-and/orManager:

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD:- Shri. Sanjay Mallik
1. Gross Salary
(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of Rs.4,53,502.00
the Income-tax Act,1961
(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Rs.50,600.00
Income-tax Act,1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section17(3) Income-tax Act,1961
2. Stock Option Nil
3. Sweat Equity Nil
4 Commission
- As % of profit
- Others (Variable compensation) Nil
5. Others, please specify Nil
Total(A) Rs.5,04,102.00
Ceiling as per the Act 5% of the Net Profits
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S. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD:- Shri. B.S.Harilal
1. Gross Salary
(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of Rs.9,53,627.00
the Income-tax Act,1961
(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Rs. 91,030.00
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section17(3) Income-tax Act,1961
2. Stock Option Nil
3. Sweat Equity Nil
4 Commission
- As % of profit
- Others (Variable compensation) Nil
5. Others, please specify Nil
Total(A) Rs 10,44,657.00
Ceiling as per the Act 5% of the Net Profits
B. Remuneration to other directors:
Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount
Shri. V. Shri. Anil | Shri. AK. Shri. V. S.
Sridar Girotra Bansal Krishna Kumar
1. Independent Directors
e Fee for attending Rs.2,40,000 | Rs. 3,40,000 Rs.40,000 Rs. 20,000 Rs.6,40,000
board/committee
meetings
e Commission :
e Others, please specify
Total(1) | Rs. 2,40,000 Rs.3,40,000 Rs.40,000 Rs. 20,000 Rs.6,40,000
4. Other Non-Executives
Directors Nil Nil Nil Nil

Fee for attending
board/committee
meeting
Commission
Others,
specify

please

Total (2)
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Total (B)=(1+2) Rs. 2,40,000 Rs.3,40,000 | Rs.40,000 Rs. 20,000 Rs.6,40,000

Total Managerial | Rs. 21,88,759.00
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the act 11% of the Net Profits

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD:

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration
CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary
1. Gross Salary
(a)Salary as per provisions contained - Rs. 6,58,916.00 | Rs. 22,18,705.00 | Rs.28,77,621.00
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax
Act,1961
(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Nil Nil
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section17(3) Income-tax Act,1961
2. Stock Option - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
4. Commission - -
- As % of profit
- Otbher, specify...
Nil Nil
5. Others, please specify - - - -
Total - Rs. 6,58,916.00 | Rs.22,18,705.00 | Rs.28,77,621.00

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
the Description Penalty/ [RD/NCLT/ if any (give
companies Punishment/ COURT] Details)
Act Compounding

Fees imposed

A) COMPANY
Penalty
i) Registration of Floating Sec 87 For condonation Rs. 52800.00 RD -
Charge of delay and

extention of
time for filling
the particulars
of charge
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registration
created in 2010.
ii) Non Maintenance of Non Rs. 82830.00 National -
SLR Maintenance of Housing
SLR in 2015-16 Bank
Punishment
Compounding
B) DIRECTOR
Penalty
Punishment Nil
Compounding
C) OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment Nil

Compounding

Place
Date

‘Mumbai
:13.08.2018

For and On Behalf of the Board

Sd/-

P. Ramana Murthy

Chairman

DIN 07815852

51

Sd/-
B.S. Harilal

Managing Director
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ANNEXURE-VI

REPORT OF DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR 2017-18

CENT BANK HOME FINANCE LIMITED, its promoter institutions, Board of Directors and
Management of the Company adopt the principles of corporate governance and endeavour to
implement good corporate governance practices in the Company.

Cent Bank Home Finance Ltd. (CBHFL) is jointly promoted by four premier institutions of the
country viz., Central Bank of India (CBI), Housing and Urban Development Corporation Limited
(HUDCO), National Housing Bank (NHB) and Specified Undertaking of Unit Trust of India (SUUTI).
All these institutions believe in strong Corporate Governance culture. We are not only following the
regulatory requirements of corporate governance but also striving hard to achieve customer
satisfaction, employees’ satisfaction and stakeholders’ satisfaction as well as regulatory compliance.

The Company and its Board of Directors strongly believe in the principles of transparency,
accountability, integrity and maximization of shareholder’s value. A brief report on the practices
prevalent in Corporate Governance at CBHFL is given below:-

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
a) COMPOSITION:

As on 31st March, 2018, there were nine Directors in the board of the Company. Out of them, seven
were Non-Executive Nominee Directors, one was Non Executive Independent Director and one was
Executive Director i.e. Managing Director. Four Non-Executive Directors were Nominees of Central
Bank of India and three Directors were Nominees of each Promoter Institution viz. SUUTI, HUDCO &
NHB.

All the Directors are persons of eminence having vast and rich experience in the field of Banking &
Finance, Housing, Law, Management and other relevant fields. The composition of Directors is in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company. The
composition of Directors during the financial year ended 31st March 2018 is mentioned below:

S. Name of Category of No. of No. of Committee Committee
No. Directors Directors other shares | Memberships | membership in
Directors | held in | in the Company other
hips the Companies
Compa
(includin ny As As As As
g Body Memb | Chair | Memb | chair
Corporat er man er man
es)
1. | Shri B.K. Non- 1 20* 1 - - -
Divakara Executive
Director from
CBI
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Shri Anil
Girotra

Non
Executive
Independent
Director

(Reappointed
w.e.f.06/08/2
014 as
independent
director in
terms of
provisions of
section 149 of
the Actin 23
AGM)

Shri P.J. Kuamr

Non
Executive
Director from
CBI

30*

Smt. Vasantha
Govindan

Non
Executive
Director from
SUUTI

Shri R.N. Hirve

Non
Executive
Director from
CBI

20*

Shri V. T.
Subramanian

Non
Executive
Director from
HUDCO

Shri Vineet
Singhal

Non
Executive
Director from
NHB

Shri P.R.
Murthy

Non-
Executive
Director from
CBI

( Appointed
w.e.f.14/08/2
017 and
elevated as
Chairman of
the Company
w.e.f.

53
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14/08/2017)

9. | Shri B.S. Managing - 30* 6 - - -
Harilal Director

(Appointed
w.e.f
31/08/2017
in place of
Shri Sanjay
Mallik)

*Holding on behalf of Central Bank of India

o The Non Executive Independent Director of the Company does not have any pecuniary
relationship or transaction with the Company which could materially interfere in exercise of
independent judgment.

b) RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD:

The Board of Directors of the Company represents the shareholders interest in the long run and
provides guidance for the management of the Company in progressive direction on behalf of the
shareholders of the Company.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its consideration and decision, apart from
those legally required e.g. at every Board Meeting quarterly performance is reviewed, actions on
recovery of overdues are recommended, availability of financial resources are ensured,
compromise proposals are discussed, strategies for better performance of the Company are framed,
discussed and reporting to shareholders is approved. The Board also discharges the duties and
responsibilities of the Company as required under various statutes as are applicable to the
Company.

Each member of the Board invariably attends the Board Meeting unless preoccupied with some
urgent matters. Hence, decisions of the Board are in true sense plural, transparent and duly
accounted for. The members of the Board ensure that other responsibilities do not have any
material impact on their responsibility as directors of the Company.

Moreover the Directors are ensuring that they do duties in accordance with the provisions of
section 166 of the Act, which prescribes as follows:

e Adirector of a company shall act in accordance with the Articles of Association (AOA) of the
company.

e A director of the company shall act in good faith in order to promote the objects of the
company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in the best interests of the company,
its employees, the shareholders, the community and for the protection of environment.

e A director of a company shall exercise his duties with due and reasonable care, skill and
diligence and shall exercise independent judgment.

e A director of a company shall not involve in a situation in which he may have a direct or
indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interest of the company.
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e A director of a company shall not achieve or attempt to achieve any undue gain or
advantage either to himself or to his relatives, partners, or associates and if such director is
found guilty of making any undue gain, he shall be liable to pay an amount equal to that gain
to the company.

e Adirector of a company shall not assign his office and any assignment so made shall be void.
c) BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board meets at least once in a quarter. Agenda for the Board Meetings are prepared well in
advance and detailed agenda papers are circulated among all the Directors. They are free to
recommend and suggest for inclusion of any other item in the agenda for further discussions.

During the year 2017-18, four meetings were held on May 22nd, 2017; August 31st, 2017; December
04t, 2017; and March 15t%, 2018. The number of meetings attended by the Directors is mentioned
below:-

Board No. of
S. . Meeting held " Last AGM Sitting Fee
No. Name of Director during Meetings Attended or Not Paid (Rs.)
Attended
tenure

1. | Shri Anil Girotra 4 4 Yes 80000
2. | Smt. Vasantha Govindan 4 4 No -

3. | Shri Sridar Venkatesan*2 3 3 No 60000
4. | Shri V.T. Subramanian 4 3 No -

5. | Shri Narender Singh* 1 1 No -

6. | Shri B.K. Divakara 4 4 No -

7. iggsgﬂli Kumar 1 1 No 20000
8. | Shri Pradeep Kumar* 1 1 No -

9. | Shri Vineet Singhal 4 4 Yes -
10. | Shri Sanjay Mallik* 1 1 - -

11 | Shri P.R. Murthy 3 3 Yes -

12 | Shri R.N. Hirve 3 3 No -
13 | Shri P.J. Kumar 3 3 No -
14 Shri. V.S. Krishna 1 1 No 20000

Kumar*3
15 | Shri B.S. Harilal 3 3 Yes -

*Ceased to be director of company on account of withdrawal of Nomination by Central Bank of
India

*1 Resigned from the position of Independent director w.e.f 22.05.2017

*2 Resigned from the position of Independent director w.e.f 18.01.2018

*3 Resigned from the position of Independent director w.e.f 30.03.2018

d) AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Company has an Audit Committee in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31st, 2018 the Audit Committee consists of 1 Non-Executive
Independent Director and 1 Executive Director. The Members of the Audit Committee as on March
31st, 2018 are Shri Anil Girotra (Chairman) and Shri B.S. Harilal.
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The scope and functions of the Committee inter-alia includes review of financial reporting systems,
review of the internal audit system, internal/statutory audit reports and review of risk
management policies of the company with the management, approval of related party transactions
etc. Role of the Audit Committee includes discussion and reviewing with the Internal Auditors any
significant findings on any internal investigation by the internal auditors into matters of suspected
fraud and irregularity. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The
recommendations of the Audit Committee were considered/accepted and implemented by the
Board.

During 2017-18, four Audit Committee meetings were held i.e. on May 22nd, 2017; August 31st,
2017; November 21st, 2017 and February 27th, 2018 to consider quarterly financial statements
apart from other items.

Committee No. of
5. Name of Director Category Meetlngs Meetings Slttm.g Fee
No. held during Paid
Attended
tenure
1. | ShriV. Sridar*2 Independent 3 3 60000
Director
2. | Shri Anil Girotra Independent 4 3 60000
Director
3. | Shri AX. Bansal*1 [ndependent 1 1 20000
Director
4. | Shri Narender Singh* Ngmmee 1 1 -
Director
5 Shri Sanjay Mallik* Managing 1 1 )
) Director
6. | ShriP.J. Kumar Nominee 1 1 -
Director
7 Shri B.S. Harilal Managing 2 2 )
) Director

*Ceased to be director of company on account of withdrawal of Nomination by Central Bank of
India

*1 Resigned from the position of Independent director w.e.f 22.05.2017

*2 Resigned from the position of Independent director w.e.f 18.01.2018

e) ASSET & LIABILITY COMMITTEE (ALCO):

As on March 31st, 2018, the ALCO of the Company comprises of Shri B.S. Harilal, Managing Director;
Shri Y. Srinivasulu, General Manager. Shri Vijay Singh, CFO; and Shri Manish Singh Payal, Company
Secretary. ALCO Meetings are convened with an objective to review the asset liability match &
mismatches if any and to decide interest rates on lending and deposits acceptance. The meetings
are held once in every month and recommendations are given to correct mismatches, if any,
observed in the ALM statements.

During the year the Committee met twelve times i.e. on April 04th 2017; May 18th, 2017; June 08t
2017; July 03rd 2017; August 25th 2017; September 20th 2017; October 25t 2017; November 08t
2017; December 11t 2017; January 20th 2018; February 28t 2018 and March 31st 2018. All
members of the Committee were present.
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f) CREDIT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

Your Company has constituted Credit Management Committee with the following objectives:
(a) to oversee the credit and lending strategies of the Company in accordance objectives of the
Company
(b) to oversee the credit risk management of the Company including reviewing internal credit
policies and
(c) to review the quality and performance of the Company’s credit portfolio. The Committee
shall also be responsible for any other matters as delegated to it by the Board.

As on March 31st, 2018, the Committee comprises of 4 members with One Non-Executive
Independent Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director. The Members of
the Committee are Shri Anil Girotra, Chairman; Shri P.J. Kumar, Shri R.N. Hirve, Shri B.S. Harilal.
Three meetings were held during the year i.e. August 31st, 2017 December 04th, 2017, and March
15t, 2018.

Committee No. of
S. Name of Director Category Meetlngs Meetings Slttmg Fee
No. held during Paid
Attended
tenure
Shri Anil Girotra, Independent 60,000
1. . . 3 3
Chairman Director
2. Shri Sridar Venkatesan* Indgpendent 2 2 40,000
Director
3. | ShriP.J. Kumar Nominee 3 3 ;
Director
4. | ShriR.N. Hirve Nominee 3 3 )
Director
5. | B.S. Harilal Managing 2 2 -
Director

* Resigned from the position of Independent director w.e.f 18.01.2018

g) HR COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted HR Committee to assist the Board in smooth & quick disposal of HR
issues of the Company relating to Human Resource Management, Compensation and such other
related activities.

The Committee will from time to time review and recommend to the Board HR policies,
organization structures, annual plans, remuneration proposals, succession and development plans
and also provides support in handling the nomination and compensation proposals for the Board.

As on March 31st 2018, the Committee consists of 6 Members with One Non-Executive Independent
Director, Four Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director.

During the year, the Committee has met twice i.e. on 31st August 2017 and 04th December 2017. The
following members were present:
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Committee No. of
5. Name of Director Category Meetmgs Meetings Slttm.g Fee
No. held during Paid
Attended
tenure
Shri Anil Girotra, Independent 40,000
1. . . 2 2
Chairman Director

2. | Shri Sridar Venkatesan* Inde.pendent 2 2 40,000
Director

3. Smt. Vasantha Govindan N(?mlnee 2 2 i
Director

4. | ShriV.T. Subramanian Ngmlnee 2 2 i
Director

5. | Shri Vineet Singhal N(?mlnee 2 2 )
Director

6. | Shri P.J. Kumar Nominee 1 1 )
Director

7. | B.S. Harilal Managing 1 1 )
Director

* Resigned from the position of Independent director w.e.f 18.01.2018

h) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted Remuneration Committee in terms of provisions of Schedule XIII of
the Companies Act, 1956. The said Committee has been renamed as Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and reconstituted in terms of the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
As on 31st March, 2018 the Committee comprises of Three members with Two Non-Executive
Directors and One Non-Executive Independent Director. The Committee has met once during the
year i.e. on 31st August 2017. The following members were present:

Committee
Meetings No. of Sittin
S. No. Name of Director Category 5 Meetings g
held during Fee Paid
Attended
tenure
1. Shri Sridar Venkatesan,* Independent Director 1 1 20,000
Shri Anil Girotra, Independent Director 20,000
2. . 1 1
Chairman
3. Shri B.K. Divakara Nominee Director 1 1 -
4. Shri Vineet Singhal Nominee Director 1 1 -
* Resigned from the position of Independent director w.e.f 18.01.2018

During the year the Committee has considered & recommended to the Board the payment of
Variable Pay, increment in the salary, considered the Evaluation reports of the Independent
Directors on performance of the Directors and the Board as a whole. According to the Companies
Act, 2013, role of the Committee is to consider and recommend to the Board the
appointment/reappointment of Managing Director/Executive Director(s) in addition to review of
their performance and recommending to the Board remuneration for the said directors and also for
the key managerial personnel and other Senior Management employees as the case may be.
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i) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE:

Our Company has constituted CSR Committee in terms of provisions of section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Committee shall assist the Board in fulfilling its duty towards the issues
of social responsibility including diversity, human rights, philanthropy and sustainability and in
framing the Company’s policies, practices and progress with respect to such issues.

The role of the CSR Committee is as follows:

e Formulation and review of CSR Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the
Company towards CSR initiatives;

e Approval of the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities;

e Formulation of a transparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the
projects/ programmes/ activities proposed to be undertaken by the Company or the end
use of the amount spent by it towards CSR activities.

e Monitor and implement the Policy from time to time

e Annually report to the Board, the status of the CSR activities and contributions made by the
Company

e Any other requirements mandated under the Act and Rules issued thereto

As on 31st March 2018, the Committee comprises of Four members with One Non-Executive
Independent Director and Two Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director. The
Committee has met once during the year i.e. on March 15t%, 2018. The following members were
present:

Committee No. of
. Name of Director Category Meetlngs Meetings Slttm.g Fee
No. held during Paid
Attended
tenure

1. | Shri Anil Girotra [ndependent 1 1 20,000
Director

2. | Shri Vineet Singhal Ngmmee 1 - )
Director

3. | Shri P.J. Kumar Nominee 1 1 ;
Director

4. | B.S.Harilal Managing 1 1 ]
Director

j) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per the provisions of section
178(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 since there are more than 1000 deposit holders as on March
31st, 2018. The Committee consists of three members chaired by Shri V.T. Subramanian, Non-
Executive Director and other Members are Managing Director and Chief Internal Auditor of the
Company.

The Committee was constituted in order to oversee and redress the complaints of the deposit
holders related to payment of interests, repayment of maturity amount, non-receipt of deposit
receipts and other related issues. The Committee has met once during the year.
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k) Risk Management Committee

During the year Company has constituted Risk Management Committee to oversee management of
various risks to which the Company is exposed. The Committee met twice during the year i.e. on
December 04th, 2017 and March 15t%, 2018. The following members were present:

Committee No. of
5. Name of Director Category Meetlngs Meetings Slttm.g Fee
No. held during Paid
Attended
tenure
Shri Anil Girotra, Independent 40,000
1. ) . 2 2
Chairman Director
2. Shri Sridar Venkatesan* Inde:‘pendent 1 1 20,000
Director
3. | Shri P.J. Kumar Nominee 2 2 ;
Director
4. | ShriRN. Hirve Nominee 2 2 )
Director
5. | B.S. Harilal Managing 2 2 )
Director

* Resigned from the role of Independent director w.e.f 18.01.2018

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

Particulars of venue, date and time of the General Meetings held during the previous three years
and the details of Special Resolution passed in the respective meetings are given below:

a) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Special

Financial Year Particulars Date & Time Venue .
Resolution

26th December Registered Office
17 h ’ -

h : "
2015-16 25th AGM 30th August 2016 | Registered Office, )
Bhopal

-Increase in
borrowing limits
of the company
-To create
Charge/Mortgage
on the assets of
the company

Registered Office, -Private
Bhopal Placement of Non
Convertible
Debentures
including Sub-
Ordinate Debt
Instruments
and/or Other
Debt Securities

21st September
2014-15 24t AGM 2015
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b) EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS:

Financial | Particulars | Date & Time Venue Special Resolution Passed
Year
2016-17 Nil Nil Nil Nil
2015-16 Nil Nil Nil Nil
2014-15 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Disclosures:
a) None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interests of

b)

g)

h)

the Company. Details of related party transactions as per Accounting Standard - 18 are
included in Notes to the Accounts.

There were no instances of non-compliance of any matter related to capital markets during
the last three years.

The Company has complied with the applicable Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time.

The Company has laid down procedures regarding key risk assessment and risk mitigation
mechanisms wherever it is required.

The Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company are paid only sitting fees for
attending meetings of the Board and Committees.

Your Company has no subsidiaries and as such the requirement relating to certain
compliances as prescribed are not applicable.

The Board of Directors of your Company is satisfied that the Company has adequate
resources to continue its business for the foreseeable future and consequently consider it
appropriate to adopt the Going Concern basis in preparing its financial statements.

There are no adverse remarks on the financial statements for the financial year 2017-18 of
the Company.

Share Capital & Shareholding pattern of the Company as on March 31st, 2018:

The shareholding pattern of the Company as on March 31st, 2018 is given below:

No. of shares Amount Percentage
Name of the Shareholder of Rs.10 each (Rs. in Cr.) (%)
Central Bank of India 16100000 16.10 64.40
I]:Itc()jusmg & Urban Development Corporation 1700000 1.70 6.80
SUUTI 3200000 3.20 12.80
National Housing Bank 4000000 4.00 16.00
TOTAL 2,50,00,000 25.00 100.00
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The authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 50 Crore and paid up capital is Rs. 25 Crore as
stated above.

Scrutiny by National Housing Bank:

NHB, being the Regulator of HFCs, conducts periodical review of the Company’s operations and
gives report for rectification of any shortcoming, ensuring transparency, accountability and
adherence to standards.

Review and Monitoring by Central Bank of India:

Senior Management staff of the Company are on deputation from Central Bank of India, which holds
majority of the shares of the Company. Central Bank of India is also one of the principal lenders to
the Company for its fund based requirements. It reviews and monitors the operations of the
Company by getting Monthly Progress Reports and placing the quarterly review of the Company in
its Board meetings. Corporate Governance Review/ Management Audit is conducted biannually by
Audit Team of Central Bank of India.

For and On Behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-

P. Ramana Murthy B.S. Harilal

Place : Mumbai Chairman Managing Director
Date :13.08.2018 DIN 07815852 DIN 07886919
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Annexure-VII

Management Discussion & Analysis Report

Industry structure and development:

Economic growth and development of any country depends upon a well-developed and controlled financial
system. Indian Financial system is rich with the presence of both banking and non-banking financial
institutions. Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) being non-banking financial institutions are playing an
important role in the housing sector.

Housing and housing finance activities in India have witnessed tremendous growth over the years. Some of
the factors that have led to this growth are - tax concessions to borrowers, increase in disposable income
levels, changing age profile of the borrowers, easy availability of loans, nuclear families, urbanization, etc. The
proportion of Mortgages to the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) ratio for India is much lower than that for
developed countries. According to KPMG estimates, there would be a total requirement of 48 Million units of
urban dwellings by 2022.

Housing for All

The Union Cabinet launched the “Housing for All by 2022” project on June 25, 2015, also known as the
Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (“PMAY”), aimed at urban areas. The key components of PMAY include:

» subsidy @ 6.5% per annum for economically weaker sections and lower income group for loans up to
Rs.6 lakh (calculated at net present value);

» subsidy @ 4% and 3% respectively to Middle Income group as per the pre-defined criteria for loan
amount upto Rs.9 lakh & Rs.12 lakh respectively (calculated at net present value)

» Another major initiative of the Ministry of Rural Development is the launch of Pradhan Mantri Awaas
Yojana- Gramin (PMAY-G)

» In March 2018, the Union Cabinet approved creation of National Urban Housing Fund (NHUF) of Rs.
60,000 crore for speedy implementation of PMAY (URBAN).

Tax incentives

The government has used tax regulations to promote the housing sector, including:

1 Tax incentives for annual interest payments of up to Rs.2 lakh (Rs.3 lakh for senior citizens) on
housing loan.
(i) The amount paid as repayment of principal amount of home loan taken for the construction or

purchase of a new house property by an individual/HUF is allowed as tax deduction under
section 80C of the Income Tax Act.

(iii) Deduction under section 80EE is also available on the interest paid on home loan by taxpayer or
assessee. This deduction is only available to first time home buyers. It was first introduced in the
Union Budget for Financial Year 2013-14 as a means to help home buyers in the lower income
group through tax reliefs.

(iv) Further initiatives such as Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016, 100% tax
exemption to developers on profit from building affordable housing and other tax exemptions
are expected to give a further push to the segment growth.
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The major opportunities in the HFC sector comprise of the following:

Rapid urbanization and increase in purchasing power of public in general gives Housing sector a real
boost.

Government vision “Housing for All by 2022” giving a new momentum to Housing Finance Sector.
Product-process innovation, digitalization, easy processing of housing loans giving a new dimension to
the Housing Sector.

Key Challenges for HFCs

Access to low-cost funds and the cost of debt is a major challenge in being able to grow the book

Demand for home finance might be impacted if there are more ‘pure investors’ purchasing homes rather
than ‘genuine home-buyers’

Higher servicing costs due to more involved nature of credit appraisal can put opex pressures

Lower asset appreciation and less liquid markets in smaller towns/rural areas can lead to difficulty in
recovering Non Performing Assets

Timely completion of projects without cost escalations is a key concern facing borrowers and financiers
alike.

Rising level of NPAs hurting the profit making capacity of HFCs.

Segment-wise or product-wise performance

The main objects of your Company, inter alia, are to carry out the business of providing long term finance to
individuals, companies, corporations, societies or associations of persons for purchase/construction/repair
and renovation of new/ existing flats/ houses for residential purposes and provide Loans against property
and loan for purchase of commercial property. CBHFL is one of the few deposit accepting HFCs in India.

During the year Company has opted for change in product mix and offering higher yielding products such as
Post Pension Program, Income Estimation Programme, Low LTV etc.

During the year Company has also changed its CBHFL prime lending rate to new reference rate called as Base
Rate.

A summary of Segment-wise performance is given as follows:

Loan Outstanding

Total Advances stood at Rs. 1266.09 Cr as on March 31,2018 as against Rs. 1322.062 Cr as on March 31, 2017.

] Loan Outstanding (Amt in Cr.)

2017-18 1266.09

T T T T T T

—+— T

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
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SANCTIONS & DISBURSEMENTS
The Sanctions and Disbursements of housing/other property loans during the financial year ended March 31,

2018 were Rs. 258.18 crore and Rs. 281.32 crore respectively vis-a-vis Rs. 409.84 crore and Rs. 498.09
crore respectively in the previous financial year.

SANCTIONS & DISBURSEMENTS (Rs. in crore)

600

498.09 472.25

409.84 415.63

400

200

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18
M Sanction H Disbursement

Deposits

As on 31.03.2018, the total deposits of your Company are Rs. 542.84 crore (which includes from public of Rs.
279.46 crore and institutional deposits of Rs. 263.38 Crore) as compared to Rs. 680.58 crore (which includes
Public deposits of Rs. 403.04 crore and institutional deposits of Rs. 277.54 Crore) at the end of the previous
year.

800
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600 403.04
500
400
300
200
100

Deposits (Amt in Cr.)

2017-18 2016-17

m Institutional = Public

70 of 138

65



Outlook

Not only is housing an indicator of social wellbeing, but it is also a key multiplier in the nation’s economic
growth. However, most of the housing development so far has largely targeted the high/mid-income
population, and there remains a clear gap between supply and demand for the low-income population. In
terms of housing finance, majority of the loans are disbursed to the high/mid-income groups due to easier
availability of proofs of credit record. On the other hand, the ability to raise finance has been hard for the
low-income group. Now, Affordable housing finance is a focus area of the Government. Recent Budgets
stress this commitment, with measures including “Housing for All by 2022” and providing loans to target
group at subsidized rate and providing subsidy to the eligible borrowers. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
continued to keep an eye on the inflation and therefore did not lower the benchmark rates during the year

During the current financial year, it is expected that the housing finance business will grow much faster
mainly because of stable political environment, new government reforms and administrative policies.

The lower demand for housing and pressure to grow has compelled lenders to opt for loan takeovers
resulting in higher prepayments. HFCs are being more impacted by the prepayments further putting
pressure on their capability and challenging their ability to withstand the price war.

The Management is confident that the Company would continue to exhibit good performance in the
current year with its efforts to optimally utilize all the resources available at its disposal and achieve the
maximum targeted result. Revamped Credit policy of the Company is expected to give new dimensions
and direct Company to achieve its target more effectively and efficiently.

Risk and Concerns:

Risk is defined as potential deviation from the expected outcome which can have negative material impact on
the Company’s business. Being a financial institution the Company is exposed to various risks such as credit
risk, market risk, interest rate risk, operational risk etc. Your Company understands the importance of risk
management and makes sure to maintain proper balance between risks and returns. Interest rate risk
exposes HFCs to fluctuation in the interest rate which is required to be managed aptly in order to mitigate the
risk. During the year the Company has constituted Risk Management Committee to foresee and manage the
risks which the Company is facing. The ALCO committee of your company periodically reviews this risk and
specifies the pricing of products accordingly. Credit risk is a risk of loss due to failure of a borrower to meet
the contractual obligation of repaying debt which is also commonly known as a risk of default. Your Company
has constituted Credit Committee of the Board in order to mitigate such risk. Also your Company tries to
mitigate operational risk by maintaining a system of internal control by establishing a system to monitor
transactions and maintaining back-up at regular intervals.

Internal Control System and their adequacy

Internal control, is a process for assuring achievement of an organization's objectives in
operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliable financial reporting, and compliance with laws, regulations
and policies. A broad concept, internal control involves everything that controls risks to an organization. It
plays an important role in detecting and preventing fraud and protecting the organization's resources, both
physical and intangible. In this regard the Board has formed Audit Committee to strengthen its internal
control system. The Internal audit deportment of the Company inspects the branches on quarterly basis and
submits its report to Audit Committee of Board at regular intervals
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Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

During the year, even with competitive rate of interest in housing finance industry, your Company managed
to achieve total revenue of Rs. 150.57 crore marking a growth of 6.98 % against Rs. 140.75 crore in the
previous year.

Despite numerous challenges, Your Company’s profit before tax for the year ended 31st March 2018 stood at
Rs 26.60 Crore as against Rs 18.27 Crore in the previous year. Your Company’s profit for the year (after
adjustments related to previous year) stood at Rs 16.84 Crore as against Rs 11.04 Crore in the previous year
registering a growth of 52.54%.

Further, your Company is relentlessly working on reduction of NPAs which stood at Rs 26.90 Crore as on 31st
March 2018 compared to Rs 21.48 Crore in the previous year ended 31st March 2017. Regulatory
forbearance on account of demonetization had given the Company a cushion of Rs. 8 Crore as on 31st March
2017, which had to be classified as NPA as on 31st May 2017. Rigorous steps had been initiated to recover
NPA and prevent fresh slippage. Company mainly focused on recovery in prudentially written off accounts.
Recovery in w/o accounts in this year is almost ten times that was achieved in FY 2016-17 i.e. Rs. 1.18 Cr as
against 0.12 Cr.

BALANCE SHEET MOVEMENT:
The summary of the Company’s balance sheet as at March 31, 2018 is given below:

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars March 2018 March 2017 Variation (%)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital 25.00 25.00 0
Reserves and Surplus 81.82 71.01 15
Long-Term Borrowings 776.57 888.96 (13)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 11.01 9.97 10
Long-Term Provisions 12.67 11.39 11
Short-Term Borrowings 292.57 264.66 11
Other Current Liabilities 124.66 127.99 3)
Short-Term Provisions 6.94 2.52 176
Total Liabilities 1331.24 1401.50 (5)
ASSETS

Fixed Assets 0.53 0.59 1y
Non-Current Investments 29.76 30.76 3)
Long-Term Loans and Advances 1058.93 1134.13 (7
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Other Non-Current Assets 3.58 4.89 (27)
Cash and cash equivalents 23.34 32.18 (27)
Short-Term Loans and Advances 208.22 192.42 8
Other Current Assets 6.88 6.53 5
Total Assets 1331.24 1401.50 (5)

** Net owned fund of the Company as on 31.03.2018 and 31.03.2017 is Rs. 99.46 Crore and Rs. 88.35 Crore
respectively.

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year under review the Authorised Share Capital of the Company stands at Rs. 50 crore
comprising of 50000000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating Rs. 50 crore out of which paid-up Share
capital is Rs. 25 Crore comprising of 25000000 equity shares of Rs.10 each.

There was no change in the Share Capital during the financial year under review.
RESERVES AND SURPLUS

The growth in reserves was achieved through strong profitability despite a challenging business
environment. Reserves and Surplus as at March 31, 2018 for your Company increased by 15% to Rs. 81.82
crore as against Rs.71.01 crore in the previous financial year. Your Company has transferred Rs.
5,71,45,605 to Special Reserve and Statutory reserve u/s 29C of National Housing Bank Act and an amount of
Rs.1,42,86,401 to General Reserve. Net owned fund of the Company as on 31.03.2018 and 31.03.2017 is Rs.
99.46 Crore and Rs. 88.35 Crore respectively.

Your company is not required to create/maintain Debenture Redemption Reserve as per rule 18 sub-rule (7)
clause (b) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 No DRR is required in the case of
privately placed debentures.

DIVIDEND

Considering the performance of your Company during the year 2017-18, your Directors are pleased to
recommend a final dividend @ of 20% (i.e. Rs.2.00 per share of face value of Rs.10 each) for the year ended
31st March 2018.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

During the Financial Year 2017-18 Net worth of the company stood at 99.46 Cr as against 88.35 Cr for the
Financial Year 2016-17. The Capital Adequacy Ratio of your company is at 17.97% as against the norm of 12
percent stipulated by the National Housing Bank (NHB).
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BORROWINGS
Term Loans from Banks:

During the financial year 2017-18 your Company raised Rs. 455.72 Crore as against Rs. 401.18 crore in the
previous financial year through term loans from banks. The said loans are secured by pari-passu charge
created on the Company’s present and future receivables including book debts in favour of lenders.

Refinance From NHB:

In the Financial Year 2017-18, your Company has availed refinance amounting to Rs. 35.00 crore from the
National Housing Bank. The amount of refinance outstanding as of 31.03.2018 from the National Housing
Bank was Rs. 152.40 crore.

Unsecured Non Convertible Debentures:

During the year 2015-16, the Company raised Unsecured NCD amounting to Rs. 30.00 cr. through private
placement basis. The debentures are currently rated as CARE A-; Stable [Single A Minus; Outlook: Stable]

Public (fixed) deposits:

The Company took several initiatives during the year to extend its reach by expanding network and
connecting with customers. As on 31.03.2018, the total deposits of your Company are Rs. 542.84 crore (which
includes from public of Rs. 279.46 crore and institutional deposits of Rs. 263.38 Crore) as compared to Rs.
680.58 crore (which includes Public deposits of Rs. 403.04 crore and institutional deposits of Rs. 277.54
Crore) at the end of the previous year.

Borrowing Composition

m Banks & Fl's
® Fixed Deposits

Non-Convertible
Debentures

m Refinance from
NHB

FIXED ASSETS

The Company’s investments in tangible assets represent cost of computers, office equipments, furniture &
fixtures and vehicles. During the financial year under review your Company’s gross block decreased by 11%
over the previous year.
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INVESTMENTS

Your Company continues to maintain an adequate amount of liquidity/treasury to meet strategic and growth
objectives. The Company has ensured a balance between earning adequate returns on liquidity/treasury

assets; and the need to cover financial and business risks.

As on March 31, 2018 the investment portfolio stood at Rs.50.26 crore as against Rs.58.24 crore in the

previous year.

Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) are required to maintain Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) in respect of
public deposits raised. Currently the SLR requirement is 12.50% of public deposits. As on March 31, 2018
your Company has invested Rs. 29.76 crore in approved securities and Rs. 20.50 crore in bank deposits.

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT:

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars March 2018 March 2017 Variation (%)
INCOME

Revenue from Operations 149.37 140.01 7
Other Income 1.19 0.74 61
Total Revenue 150.57 140.75 7
EXPENSES

Interest & Finance Cost 105.39 102.85 2
Employees Remuneration & Benefits 5.95 6.18 (4)
Administrative & Other Expenses 11.00 10.05 9
Depreciation & Amortisation 0.17 0.23 (26)
Provision for Standard Assets (0.79) 0.84 (195)
Provisons for Doubtful Debts 1.95 3.07 (36)
Total Expenses 123.67 123.29 -
Profit Before Tax Provision and | 26.90 17.53 53
Exceptional Item

Exceptional items 0.30 0.75 (60)
Profit Before Tax and after Exceptional | 26.60 18.28 46
Item

Tax Expense (including Deferred Tax) 9.76 7.24 35
Profit For The Year 16.84 11.04 52

70

75 of 138




INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Your Company’s income from operations increased by 7% from Rs. 140.01 crore in the financial year ended
March 31,2017 to Rs. 149.37 crore for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.

INTEREST AND FINANCE COST

Your Company’s interest & finance expenses increased by 2% from Rs.104.15 crore in the financial year 2017
to Rs.105.39 crore for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION & BENEFITS

Employee costs decreased by 4% from Rs.6.18 crore for the financial year ended March 31, 2017 to Rs.5.95
crore for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.

OTHER EXPENSES

The operating expenses increased by 9% from Rs.10.05 crore for the financial year ended March 31, 2017 to
Rs.11 crore for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 owing to an increase in rent, rates, taxes, bank
charges and miscellaneous expenditure.

DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION

Depreciation charged on fixed assets was Rs.0.17 crore in the financial year 2017-18 vis-a-vis Rs.0.24 crore
during the financial year 2016-17.

PROVISION

Your Company has made full provisions for Contingencies for diminution in investment value and on
standard as well as on non-performing housing loans and other property loans as per the Prudential Norms
prescribed by the National Housing Bank. Your Company has made provision amounting to Rs.8.91 crore for
NPA.

NET PROFIT

During the year 2017-18, your Company has made net profit of Rs.16.84 crore in the financial year ended
March 31, 2018 as against Rs. 11.04 crore for the financial year ended March 31, 2017.

Non Performing Assets

Your Company is implementing each and every available option to recover its dues from non-performing
accounts. The gross NPA stood at Rs. 26.89 crore as against Rs. 21.48 Crore for the previous financial year
ended 31st March, 2017.

With due provisions the net NPA stood at Rs.16.72 Crore as on 31st March 2018 as against Rs. 13.69 Crore as
on 31st March 2017.
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NPA CLASSIFICATION

-‘

* [9.72 i
20 ' l7.24_ l
FY 17-18 FY 16-17
® Housing Non-Housing
NPA Ratios:
Particulars 31st March 2018 31st March 2017

% of Gross NPA to Gross Advances 2.12% 1.62%
% of Net NPA to Net Advance 1.33% 1.04%

Material Developments in Human Resources

Human resources are the people who make up the workforce of an organization. The human-resources
department (HR department) of our Company performs human resource management, overseeing various
aspects of employment, such as compliance with labour law and employment standards, administration
of employee benefits, and the aspects of recruitment and training. Main focus of your Company is to give a
conducive atmosphere to every employee, providing them proper training at periodic intervals.

Company has tie up with Man Power outsourcing agency in order to attract capable talent. The Company also
has its own recruitment policy approved by the Board and has its own interview committee to select the
potential aspirants. The recruitment process of the Company is transparent providing equal opportunity to
everyone.

As on March 31, 2018, the Company had 73 employees on roll and 84 off roll employees.

Vigilance Oversight

Being a Public Sector Company, the affairs of operations and activities are under oversight of Central
Vigilance Commission through the Chief Vigilance Officer of Central Bank of India.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CENT BANK HOME FINANCE LIMITED FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The preparation of financial statements of Cent Bank Home Finance Limited for the year

ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
r the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the

the Comptroller and Auditor General of India

unde

Company. The statutory auditor appointed by

under Section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial

statements under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit in accordance with the

standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have

been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 17 April 2018.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a

supplementary audit under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the financial statements of Cent

Bank Home Finance Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018. This supplementary audit

has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory

auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel

unting records. Based on my supplementary

cant matters under Section 143(6)(b) of

and a selective examination of some of the acco

audit, 1 would like to highlight the following signifi

the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a

better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report.

1. Balance Sheet

Assets
Other Current Assets (Note No. 15): % (88.27 lakh

(b) (iv) Others: X 195.39 lakh

The above includes an amount of ¥121.06 lakh in respect of Direct Selling Agent

Commission (383.43 lakh) and Brokerage (337.63 lakh). As per the policy of the Company,

the commission and charges paid to Marketing Intermediaries were to be amortised but the

amortisation has not been carried out for 2015-16 and the amount has been kept under

‘Other Current Assets’. This has resulted i1 understatement of ‘Prior Period Expenditure’
and overstatement of ‘Other Current Assets’ and ‘Profit before tax’ by ¥121.06 lakh.

Contd.
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2. Additional information on the Financial Statements (Note No. 23)
Reporting under Accounting Standard 15 — Retirement Benefits {Note 23 (36)}

-

a) The Central Government has notified the Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018 on
29 March 2018 and has increased the ceiling of the amount of gratuity payable to employees
from 210 lakh to 220 lakh. However, the Company has not considered the increase in ceiling
amount for creation of provision for payment of gratuity to employees. The financial impact

is not ascertainable by Audit since this is an exercise to be carried out during actuarial

valuation.

b) The above note does not include disclosures regarding defined benefit plans regarding
present value of defined benefit obligations, plan assets, total expenses recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, actuarial gains and losses along with actuarial assumptions

etc., as required under Para 119 and 120 of Accounting Standard 15.

3.  Independent Auditor’s Report

The inadequacies in accounting and disclosure mentioned above under SI.No.1 and 2 have

not been reported by the Statutory Auditor in the Independent Auditor’s Report dated

17.04.2018.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

U‘;L\JVV\A D-
(Vikram D. Murugar:
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-officio Member, Audit Board — 111,
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Dated:eSJuly 2018
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E-mail: multical980@hotmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CENT BANK HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Cent Bank Home Finance
Limited (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and
profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation
and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting



mailto:multical980@hotmail.com

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

(a) Note 23 (16) in the financial statements which indicate that the company has created
Deferred Tax Liability on Special Reserves to the tune of Rs 19778094/-( Previous year
55,518,583/-) in pursuance with NHB guidelines NHB(ND)/DRS/Policy Circular
65/2014-15 through P/L Appropriation to the tune of Rs 19778094 /- ( Previous year Rs.
13263405 /-) and Rs. NI L through Appropriation in Surplus in statement of profit and
loss -(Previous year Rs 42255178 /-).

(b) Note 23 (25) in the financial statements which indicate that the company’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets as at the Balance sheet date. These conditions, along
with other matters set forth in Note 23(23) indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern . However , the financial statements of the company have been prepared
on a going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said Note .

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
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b 1.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Audit and Auditors Report) Order, 2014 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the “Annexure - A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order.

As required by the Housing Finance Companies~ Auditors Report (National Housing Bank)
Directions 2016 issued by the National Housing Bank vide Notification No NHB.HFC.AR-
DIR.1/MD & CEO/2016 Dated 3-2-2017 , we give in the “Annexure - C” statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3A and 3 B.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

d)

g2)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns
adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from the branches not visited
by us.

Whatever reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the Company audited under
Section 143 (8) of the Act by branch auditors have been sent to us and have been dealit
with by us in preparing this report.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account and with the returns
received from the branches not visited by us.

In our opinion, the afore said standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses a modified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31* March,
2018+,

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as og 31
March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (Z§asH)




h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s report) order, 2014, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements Refer Note 23 (18) to the financial statements;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long term contract including derivative
contract which may have any material foreseeable losses hence there is no need to
create any provision, required under the applicable law or accounting standards,—
Refer Note 23(26) to the financial statements;

iii. The company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection fund.

4. Our views on Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2103 By C&AG is
enclosed as “Annexure “D”.

5. As per the notification by Ministry of Corporate Affairs GSR 463(E) dated 05 June, 2015,
Government Companies are exempt from the applicability of the provisions of Section 164(2) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Place CAMP MUMBALI For, Multi Associates
Date: 17th April 2018 Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on
the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

(i) (@) On the basis of available information the company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us all the assets have been physically verified by the management at
the year end. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Company does not have any immovable assets hence no question of title deed arises.

(i)  As the Company is a Housing Finance Company (HFC). This clause regarding inventory
records, procedures for physical verification etc are not applicable.

(iti)  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013.

(a) Since the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms or other parties covered under section 189 of the companies Act 2013, same has
not been prejudicial to the company’s interest.

(b) The Company has not granted loans under section 189 of the companies Act 2013,
the clause regarding schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest is not
applicable.

(c) Since no loans granted under section 189 of the companies Act 2013 the clause
regarding the amount of overdue and reasonable steps taken by the company for
recovery is not applicable.

(iv)  On the basis of available information the company has not advanced any Loan, directly
or indirectly, to any of its Directors or to any person in whom the director is interested
covered under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per the Available records the company has made investments complying with the
Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

(v)  The Company is Housing Finance Company, hence the provisions of the Section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provision of the Companies Act 2013 and rules framed there
under are not applicable to the company.

(vi)  The maintenance of the cost records is not applicable to the Company{(‘ Y
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, investor education protection fund, employees state insurance, income
tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it have been generally deposited with the
appropriate authority. The Income Tax Liability of Rs 1418837/~ for Assessment Year
2010-11,and Rs. 1087650.00 for Assessment year 2014-15 for which proceedings with
Income tax authorities for giving credit of TDS are pending.

(b) Ctause 18 of notes 23 gives full disclosure regarding company’s dispute with Income
Tax Authorities.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or
debenture holders.

As per the information and explanation given to us the company has not raised any
money by the way of Initial public offer or further public offer or from issue of fresh
Debentures. The Company has also raised new term loans during the year and to the best
of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation given to
us in our opinion the term loans availed by the company have been used by the company
for the purpose for which they were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provision of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act 2013.

As this is a Housing Finance Company not a Nidhi Company this clause is not
applicable.

As per the records and information made to us all the transaction with the related parties
are in compliance with the section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and same
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements.

As per the records and information given to us during the year company has not issued
Debentures by the way of Private Placement. No shares were issued during the year.,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him.

t BHOPAL ;
(9]
%%’edwﬁﬁ
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(xvi) In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us the Company is a Housing
Finance Company registered with National Housing Bank and is exempted to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Place CAMP MUMBAI For, Multi Associates
Date: 17th April 2018 ' Chartered Accountants

. a—

CA R.K. Agrawal
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Audit Report of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of sub

section 3 of section 143 of Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CENT BANK HOME
FINANCE LIMITED, as of 31™ March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, And the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
aspects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of then
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understandmg
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a, jal weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness o




on the assessed risk. The procedure selected depends upon the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
company has, all material respects, an adequate internal financial system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31%
March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
~ company considering the essential components of internal financial control stated in the




ii.

iii.

iv.

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, subject to the following material weaknesses have
been identified as at March 31, 2018:

Books of accounts of the company are maintained in a computer software for Head office
and branches separately. In books of accounts for the year ending 31% March,2017 the
closing entries are passed in the month of July-August,2017 in the said software. Hence the
opening balance in the books of accounts as on 1% April, 2017 does not tally with the audited
Balance sheet as on 31% March,2017 . The accounting software used by the company needs
immediate changes as the same does not allows closing entries to be made on the desired
dates. Secondly the software should prepare at least final accounts as per the provisions of
Companies act.

As per policy of the company, valuation of the construction of the property is to be done at
different stages of construction on percentage basis. In our opinion the percentage of
construction cannot be certified by the valuer correctly but it should be done on actual
construction done basis. Secondly we have observed that in almost all the cases the valuers
have valued property much higher than the actual sale price . It results in failure of auction
when the account turns NPA | as the valuation at the time of auction is always done keeping
in mind the previous valuation done.

The legal procedure to be followed when the account is identified as NPA is not followed
swiftly and within the time prescribed and is generally late.

Insurance of property mortgaged is not done in all the cases. There is no policy of the
company as regards insurance. In our opinion insurance of all the properties mortgaged
should be done to avoid any loss on account of damage to property because of natural
calamities, disasters or other reasons.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2018 standalone
financial statements of the Company, and these material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on
the standalone financial statements of the Company.

Place: CAMP MUMBAI For, Multi Associates
Date: 17th April 2018 Chartered Accountants
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements” of our Audit Report of even date)

The company is registered with NHB vide registration certification No. 01.0004.03 dated
31.07.2001.

see

iv.

Vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

Company is meeting the required Net Owned Fund (NOF) requirement as prescribed
under Section 29 A of National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

The company has complied with the provisions of section 29C of National Housing
Bank Act, 1987 with regard to the requirement of the reserve fund.

The company is accepting and holding public deposits and we report that:

a. The public deposits accepted by the company are within the admissible limits.

b. The total borrowings of the company i.e.deposits inclusive of public deposits
together with the amounts referred to, in paragraph 3 clause B & sub-section (ii) of
Notification No.NHB.HFC.AR-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016, 1934 are with in the limits
prescribed in the said directions.

The public deposits accepted by the company are within the admissible Jimits.

The credit rating for deposits i.e. “FA-" with Outlook STABLE assigned by the credit
rating agency CRISIL. The aggregate amount of deposits outstanding as at any point
of time during the year has not exceeded the limits specified by the rating agency.

The company has not defaulted during the year in paying to its depositor the interest
and/or principal amounts of deposits after such interest and/or principal became due.
The total borrowings of the company are within the limits prescribed under paragraph
3(2) of the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010,

The company has complied with the prudential norms on income recognition,
accounting standards, asset classification, loan-to-value ratio, provisioning
requirements, disclosure in balance sheet, investment in real estate, exposure to
capital market and engagement of brokers, and concentration of credit/investments as
specified in the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 .

The capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the Schedule-II return submitted to the
National Housing Bank in terms of the Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions, 2010 has been correctly determined and whether such ratio is in
compliance with the minimum capital to risk weighted asset ratio (CRAR) prescribed
therein;

The company has furnished to the Bank within the stipulated period the Schedule-It
return as specified in the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Direction
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xi.

Xil.

Xiil.

Xiv.

The company has complied with the liquid assets requirement as prescribed by the
National Housing Bank in exercise of powers under section 29B of the National
Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the requirements as specified in paragraphs 14 and 15 of
the Housing Finance Companies {NHB) Directions, 2010.

The company has furnished to the National Housing Bank within the stipulated period
the Schedule-III return on Statutory Liquid Assets as specified in the Housing
Finance Companies {(NHB) Directions, 2010;

The company has complied with the provisions contained in paragraph 38 and 38A of
the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010;

The company has not violated any provisions contained under restriction on
acceptance of public deposits, period of public deposits, Joint public deposit,
particulars to be specified in application form soliciting public deposits, ceiling on the
rate of interest and brokerage and interest on overdue public deposits, renewal of
public deposits before maturity as provided in Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions, 2010, '

Place: CAMP MUMBAI For, Multi Associates
Date: #cApril2618 Chartered Accountants -
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Annexure D to the Independent Auditor’s Report

{Referred to in paragraph 4 under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our Audit Report of even date)

Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013

1. Whether the company has clear title/lease deeds for freehold and leasehold land respectively?
If not please state the area of freehold and leasehold land for which title/lease deeds are not
available,

Ans: The Company does not have any Land in its name hence no question of title deed arises.

2. Whether there are any cases of waiver/write-off of debts/loans/interest etc, if yes the reason
there for and the amount involved.

Ans: During the year the Company has not written-off any irrevocable bad debts.

3. Whether proper records are maintained for investments lying with third parties & Assets
received as Gift/Grants from Govt. or other authorities.

Ans: The Company is Housing Finance Company and as per information provided to us and to
best of our knowledge they haven’t received any such gift from Government or other Authorities
and the company has also have no investment lying with third parties.

Place: Camp Mumbai For, Multi Associates
Date: (2820793 Chartered Accountants

117 APR 2018
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2018
Registered Office:+# 9, Central Bank of India Building, Arera Hills, Jail Road, Bhopal

B.S. Harilal
Managing Director
DIN: 07886919

ﬁ

Manish Singh Payal
Company Secretary

CARK Agrawal
Partner

 No 071755
FRN 509955C

Place : Camp-MUMBA!
Date

17 AFR 2018

Particulars Note No. | As at 31 March, 2018 | As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
A |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1|Shareholders’ funds
{(a) Share capital 2 2,500,00 2,500.00
{b} Reserves and surplus 3 8,182.25 7,100.45
10,682.28 9,600.45
2[Non-current liabilities
{8} Long-term borrowings 4 77,656,693 §8,895.71
(b} Deferred tax liabilities 3a 1.101.24 997.19
{c} Long-term provisions 5 1,266.91 1,139.95
80,024.84 91,032.85
3|Current liabilities ’
{a) Short-term borrowings 6 29,256.75 26,465.95
{b} Other current liabilities 7 12,466.38 12,799.77
(c) Shori-term provisions 8 693.88 251.33
42.417.02 39,517.05
TOTAL 1,33,124.10 1,40,150.38
B |ASSETS
1|Non-current assets
{a) Fixed assets
(i) Tangible assets 9 52.50 58.80
{b} Non-current investments 10 2,976.04 3,076.04
(¢) Long-term ioans and advances " 1,05,892.54 1,13413.24
{d} Other Non-current assets 12 357.85 489.64
1,09,278.93 117,037.73
2|Current agsats
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 13 2,334.73 321842
{b) Short-term loans and advances 14 20,822.18 19,241.14
{c) Other currenl assets 15 688,27 653.07
23,845.17 23,112.63
TOTAL 1,33,124.10 1,40,150.35
Note : See accompanying notes forming part of the financial 1823
As per our report of even date
|For Multi Associates

Chartered Accountants '
PESOA,. P.R. Murthy

Chairman
DIN: 07815852

Nt

Vilay Kumar Singh
Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2018
Registered Office:-# 9, Central Bank of India Building, Arera Hills, Jail Road, Bhopal

M No 071756
FRN 509955C

Place : Camp- MUKMBAI
IDa!e 1 ? 'Pﬁ ’f ?

|For Multi Associates
Chartared Accountants

W
B.S. Harilal

Managing Director
DIN: 07886919

%d—./
Manish Singh Payal
Company Secretary

Particulars Note No. | For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
A |INCOME Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
1 Revenue from operations 16 14,937.59 14,002.10
2 |Other income 17 119.47 73.58
3 Total revenue (1+2) 15,067.08 14,075.68
B [Expenses
4 (a) Employee benefits expense 18 594.87 617.57
(b) Finance costs 19 10,539.16 10,285.49
{c) Depreciation and amortisation expense 9 17.10 22.88
{d) Other expenses 20 1,100.11 1,005.06
{e) Provision for Standard Assets 21 {79.66) 83.67
{ft Provisons for Doubtful Debts 195.38 307.22
Total expenses 12,366.96 12,321.90 )
5  |Profit before tax and extraordinary items 2,690.10 1,763.78
6 |Extraordinary items
Add:- Extraordinary ltem 22 - 132.52
Less:-Prior peniod adjustements 3043 58.65
7 |Profit / (Loss) before tax (5-6) 2,659.87 1,827.65
8 |Tax expense:
{a) Current year tax expense 791.12 530.54
(b) Provision for tax of previous years 80.90 -
{¢) Deferred tax of cusrent year {93.73) 60.40
(d) Deferred tax on special reserves 197.78 132.63
976.08 723.57
9  |Profit from continuing operations (7-8) 1,683.59 1,104.08
10 |Profit for the year 1,683.59 1,104.08
12 |Eamings per share (of Rs.10/- each):
{a) Basic 239 8.73 4.42
{b} Diluted 239 6.73 4.42
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1&23
As per our report of even date

(Kl

Chairman
DIN: 07815852

o

Vijay Kumar Singh
Chief Financial Officer
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2018
Registered Office:-# 9, Central Bank of India Bullding, Arera Hillg, Jail Road, Bhopal

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
_Rsin Lakhs Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
A, Cash flow from operating activities
ﬁNe( Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 2,690.10 2,144 67
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amoitisation (+) 132.82 22.88
Provision for NPA reversal and other {-) - 239.33
Bad debts written off {+) - 239.33
Profit on sale of fixed assets ) 0.65 0.09
Loss on sale of fixed assets {+} : - 0.05
Prior period Adj. {+) (30.43) {52.04)
LOpa‘atingApmﬁl { {loss) before working capital changes 2,791.84 2.115.47
in i ita):
Adiustments for {increase) / decrease in operating assets:
inventories
Short-term loans and advances (1.581.03) {2,924.43)
Long-term loans and advances 7.520.70 {18,586.68)
Other current assets (35.20) {309.55)
Other non-cusrent assets 131.79 128.68
Adjustments for increase / (dacrease) in operating liabilities:
Deferred Tax Liabilities 104.05 615.58
Other current fiabilities {330.94) 3,239.15
Short-term provisions
Long-term provisions
5,809.37 {17,837.27)
Cash flow from extraordinary items
GCash generated from operations 8.601.21 {15,721.80)
Net income tax {paid) {976.08) (723.57)
Net cash flow from / {used In) operating activities (A) 7,625.13 _(E,M_S_H
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2018 (Contd.)
Reglstered Office:# 9, Central Bank of India Bullding, Arera Hills, Jail Road, Bhopal

Particulars Forthe year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
[ Rsin Lakhs Rsinlakhs |  RsinLakhs Rs in Lakhs
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capitat expenditure on fixed assets, including capital advances {10.80) {14.84)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 0.65 0.09
Inter-corporate deposits (net)
Bank balances not considerad as Cash and cash equivalents
- Placed
- Matured .
Cutrent investments not considered as Cash and cash equivalents
- Purchased 100.00 {100.14)
- Proceeds from sale
[Net cash flow from / {used in) investing activities {B) 89.85 {114.89)
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2018 {Contd.)
Reglistered Office:-# 9, Central Bank of Indla Building, Arera Hills, Jait Road, Bhopat

= Cent Bank

m Home Flnance Limited

Husntdiary ot Contrat Jenk of indlor

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Ra in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs Rs In Lakhs
C, Cash flow from financing activities
Pavment of CSR fund - - {52.05) -
1Appropriation of DTL on Special reserves from Reserves and Provision . - (801.75) -
of Income Tax of previous years
Proceeds (+VRepayment (-) of long-term borrowings {11,239.03} - 11,422.59 -
Proceeds from other short-term bomowings 2,790.80 - 4.751.00 -
Repavment of other short-term borrowings - - - .
Dividends paid 125.00) - {375.00} -
Tax on dividend {25.45) - {76.34) -
Net cash flow from / {used In} financing activities (C) | {8,593.67) | 14,268.45 |
Not Increase / {decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) | (883.69)] {1,691.81)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 321842 4910.2:
h 233473 3.218.42
As per owr repori of even date
|For Multi Associates ]
Chartered Accountants MM ﬂ K' M/;
P .
N 8.S. Harilal P.R. Murthy
Managing Director Chalrman
DiIN: 07886919 DiN: 07836852

CA R K Agrawal

M No 071755
FRN 509955C

s I "RPR 2018

o

Manish Sinah Paval
Company Secretary

r\rvl

Viiav Kumar Sinah
Chief Financial Officer

D
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1. in he F al S ents:-
A. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on May 07,1991 as “Apna Ghar Vitta Nigam Limited” and
subsequently changed its name as “Cent bank Home Finance limited” and obtained its fresh
certificate of incorporation on 19 June, 1992, Company has commenced its business on junel8,
1991 and obtained the certificate of registration under the National Housing Bank (“NHB”) as
required under Section 29A of the NHB Act, 1987 on July 31, 2001. The Company is a Subsidiary of
Central Bank of India jointly promoted by National Housing bank, HUDCO and SUUTI. The main
objects of the Company, inter alia are to carry out the business of providing long term finance to
individuals, companies, corporations, societies or associations of persons for
purchase/construction/repair and renovation of new/ existing flats/ houses for residential
purposes and provide Loans against property and loan for purchases of commercial purposes and
provide loans against property and Loan for purchase of Commercial property. The Company is
currently operating with 18 branches and 1 representative office.

B. Significant Accounting Policies

1. General system and method of accounting:

The Financial Statements of the company have been prepared and presented as per the
generally accepted accounting principles in India (GAAP) under the historical cost
convection on accrual basis. The Company has prepared its Financial Statements to
comply with the all material aspects of the Accounting standards notified under section
133 of the companies Act 2013, The National Housing Bank Act 1987 and the Housing
Finance Companies (“NHB") Directions, 2010,

Accourniting policies adopted in preparation of financial statements are consisting with
those followed in previous year.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in “Lakhs” except for the per share
data and as otherwise stated.

2. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements require the management of the company to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and
liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the reporting
period. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the
current and future periods. Example of such estimates includes provision for non-
performing loans, provision for employee benefit plans and provision for income taxes.

3. Revenue Recognition




Revenue has been recognized as per the prudential norms laid down by National
Housing Bank (NHB).

4.

a. Interest on Loans - Interest income is recognized on accrual basis except in
case of Non-Performing Assets (NPA) where interest is accounted on
realization. In loans, the repayment is received by the way of Equated
Monthly Installments (EMIs) comprising principal and interest. Interest is
calculated on the outstanding balance at the beginning of the month. EMI
commences once the entire loan is disbursed. Pending commencement of
EMI, pre-EM] monthly interest is charged. Recovery in case of NPA is
appropriated first towards interest portion of overdue EMIs and thereafter
towards principal portion of overdue EMIs.

b. Fees and Other Charges - Income from fee and Other Charges viz. log in fee,
Penal Interest on Overdue, Pre-payment charges etc, are recognized on
receipt basis.

¢. Income from Investment - Interest on Bank Deposits/ Bonds/ Govt
Securities are accounted on accrual basis. Dividend Income is accounted for
in the year in the same is received.

d. Other Income - Interest on tax refunds and other income are accounted for
on receipts basis.

Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Costs
include all expenses incidental to the acquisition of the fixed assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the basis of the useful life of the Asset as prescribed
under Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.Company is using Straight Line
Method to provide depreciation on its Fixed Assets.

Investments .

According to the Accounting Standard (AS-13) on “Accounting on [nvestment”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the guidelines issued
by the National Housing Bank, Investments are either classified as Current and Non
Current Investments. Current Investment are carried at lower of cost and market
value and long term investments are carried at cost.

Employee Benefits

Gratuity amount has been set aside on actuarial basis and investment in group
maturity Scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.
Company’s contribution in respect of Employees’ Provident Fund is made to
Government Provident Fund and is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Borrowing Costs
Brokerage costs directly attributable to borrowing are amortized over the period of
its life. L




9. Earnings Per Share

The Basic and Diluted earnings per share have by dividing the net profit/ loss

~ attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the weighted average

10

11.

number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period.

Income Tax
Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-22) -
“Accounting for taxes on income”, notified under the Companies {Accounting
Standards}) Amendment Rules, 2011. Income Tax comprises both current and
deferred tax.

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Tax effect of the timing differences that result between taxable income and
accounting income and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods
are recorded as a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability. They are measured
using substantially enacted tax rates and tax regulations as of the Balance Sheet
date.

Provisions for Contingencies

Provision on loans has been arrived at in accordance with National Housing Bank
guidelines and directives. Advances to borrowers are classified into Performing and
Non Performing based on overdue of Principal/Interest. Non Performing Assets
(NPAs) are further categorized as Sub-Standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets.

Contingent Liability policy

The Company estimates the probability of any loss that might be incurred on
outcome of contingencies on the basis of information available upto the date on
which the financial statements are prepared. A provision is recognized when a
company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
reliable estimates can be made. Provisions are determined based on management
estimates of amounts required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

In cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the contingency
is reasonably possible but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimates, a

disclosure to this effect is made in the financial statements as contingent liability.

In Case of remote possibility, neither provision nor disclosure is made in the

financial statements. The Company does not account for or disclose contingent

o r——

assets, if any.




The Following table describes the nature of contingent liabilities of the Company.

S.No Contingent Liability Brief Description
1 Claims against the company, | This item represents certain demands
not acknowledge as debts made in certain tax and legal matters

against the Company in the normal
course of business. In Accordance
with the Companys Accounting Policy
and Accounting Standard 29, the
Company has reviewed and classified
these items as possible obligations
based on legal opinion /judicial
precedents/ assessment by the
Company

2 Other Contingent Liabilities Other items for which the company is
contingent liable primarily include
the estimate amount of contracts
remaining to be executed on Capital
Account and not provided for

12. Loan Origination/Acquisition Cost: - All Direct Cost incurred for the loan
origination are amortized over the average tenure of the loan.

13. Unclaimed Deposits

Deposits, which have become due but not been presented for the payment or
renewal, are transferred to unclaimed deposits. Interest for the period from last
maturity date till the date of renewal of unclaimed deposits is accounted for during
the year of its renewal.

14, Floating Provision
Company will create floating provision only against Bad & Doubtful Debts and
amount of provision will be approved by the Board from time to time,

15. Cash Flow Statement.
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method as prescribed under AS-3,
whereby profit/loss before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of
transaction of non cash nature or deferrals or accruals of past and future cash
receipts and payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities for the Company are segregated based on the available information.
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b Cant Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the Rnancial statements
Note 2 Shave capital
Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 As ot 31 March, 2017
Number of Number of
Rs In Lakhs Rs In Lakhs
shareg shares
{2} Awthorised
Equity shares of RS, 10/ sach 5.00,00,000 5.000.00 5,00.00,000 5,000.00
{h) Issued
Equity shanes of Rs. 10/ each 2,50,00.000 2,500.00 2,50,00,000 2,500.00
(¢} Subscribed and fully pald up
Equity shares of Rs.10V- each 2.50.00.000, 2,500.00 2.50.00,000 2,500.00
Total 2,60,00,000; 2,500.00 2,60,00,000 2,500.00
Cant Bank Horme Finance Limited
Notes fonming part of the financial staterments
{Note 2 Share capltal {contd.)
Particulars
Notes:
l_(l} Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outslanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
Paticutars Opening Fresh Issue Bonus ESOP Conversion |Buy back| Other | Closing Balance
Balance changes
(pive
! detafiz)
k
Year ended 31 March, 2019
- Humber of shares 2,50,00,00¢ - - . - - - 2.50,00,000
~ Amound {in Rs.) 2,500.00 - . - - - - 2,600.00,
[Year ended 31 March, 2017
- Number of shares 2,50,00,000 . - . . . N 2,50,00,000
- Amount (in Rs.} 2,500.00 - - - - - - 00,00/
1l‘.)mlls of shares heid by the holding company. lhe viimate hokling company, their subsidiades and associales:
Particudars Equity shares { Equity shares ; Compulsorily Optionally Redesmable
with dIff ial rtible rtible pref
voting rights prefecence | preference shares shares
shares
Number of shares
As at 31 March, 2019 Nos.
Central Bank of Indka, the holding compa 1,61,00,000
the ultimate holding compa -
Subsidiaries of the holding compan,

Associates of the holding comaany -
Subsidianes of the uttimate holding compa .
Associates of the ulimate hotding compa -

A

N EEEDD

As at 31 Mareh, 2017 - . . -
Contral Bank of India, the holding comp 1,61,00.000 - - -
Subsidiaras of the holiing comparny

* Shares heid by the ultimate holding company, thelr subsidiaries and associales, excepl the holding company “CB{* are NIL.
(iv) Dotails of shares heild by each shareholder hokding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of sharehold

Azt March 2018 | = AsstItMarch 2017 ¢
Number of % holding in Number of | % holding In that
shares held that ¢lass of shares hald | class of shares

shares
4,61,00,000 | 64.40%]  1.61.00.000 64.40%
40,00,000 16.00% 40,00,000 16.00%
32,00,000 12.80% 32,00.000 12.80%
17,006,600 B0% 17,00,000 6.80%
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financiat statements

Note 3 Reserves and surplus
Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 | As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
{a) Share Premium Account 690.00 $90.00
Others (qive delails)
Closing balance 690.00 690.00
(b) General reserve
Opening balance 538.61 44280
Add: Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss 142.86 95.81
Closing balance 681.47 538.61
{c) Special Reserve
{Speclal Reserve created in terms of Section 36(1){viii) of IT Act, 1961 and as per
Section 29 C of NHB Act.)
Opening balance 3.418.85 3,035.63
Add: Additions / transfers during the year 5§71.46 383.22
Closing balance 3,990.31 3,418.85
{d) Additional Reserve
{Created under section 29C of NHB Act 1987)
Opening balance 300.00 300.00
Add: Additions / transfers during the year
Closing balance 300.00 300.00
(e) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 2,520.47 2,152.99
Opening balance 2,152.99 2,507.63
Add: Profit for the year 1,683.59 1,104.08
Amounts transferred from: - -
General reserve - -
Other reserves (give details) - -
Less: Appropriations - -
a) Proposed Dividend 500.00 125.00
b} Tax on dividend 101.79 2545
¢} Provision for Income Tax of previous years - 379.19
d) Appropration of DTL on Specials Reserves as per NHB guidelines - 422.55
€) Amount spent on CSR activity - 27.50
Transferred to: - -
General reserve 142.86 95.81
Spedial Reserve §71.46 383.22
Additional reserve ufs 29C of NHB Act
Closing balance 2,520.47 2,152.99
Closing Balance - __Yotat| 8,182.25 7,100.45
Note: Deferred Tax Liability created as per NHB guidelines vide circtilar no.NHB(NDYDRS/Policy Circular no.65/2014-15 dated
August 22, 2014,
{Dividend per share {of {Rs} (Rs}
Rs.10/- each):
Dividend per Share 2 0.5
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 3a Deferred Tax Liabilities

4 Home Finance Limited
of b}

Cent Bank

n0.65/2014-15 dated August 22, 2014.

Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs

{Deferred Tax Asset (A) Amount Amount
Provision for NPA's
Standard Assets 461.77 421.72
Others 8.58 7.73
Depreciation 3.46 473.81 2.44 431 .891
Deferred Tax Liability (B)
Special Reserve 1,362.23 1,164.44
Others 212.82 1,575.05 264.64 1,429.08
(A)-(B)= DTL = 1,101.24 997.19

Note: Deferred Tax Liabiity created as per NHB guidelines vide circular no.NHB(ND)/WSTPoIicy Circular
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
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Cent Bank

- Home Finance Limited

Mdb&dm

Note 4 Long-term borrowings
Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 Ag at 31 March, 2017
Rs In Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
{(a) Non Convertible Debentures #
Unsecured 3,000.00 3,000.00
|(b) Term loans
From banks
Secured 43,575.45 39,136.86
Unsecured
{¢c) Deposits *
Secured
Unsecured 31,081.23 46,758.85
Total 77,656.69 88,895.71

on maturity at 20/08/2021 with ROl @10.75%.

*With respect to Deposits, the company has created a floating charge as per the directions of NHB on the assets invested by the company
under section (1) & (2) of Section 29B of the NHB Act, 1987.

# Unsecured Unlisted Redeemable Non Convertible subordinated debentures aggregating to Rs.30 Crore outstanding as at 31st March
2018, and are subordinated to present and future indebtness of the Company. It qualifies as Tier-Il Capital in accordance with National
Housing Bank (NHB) guidelines for assessing capital adequacy based on balance term to maturity. These debentures are redeemable at par
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(Sautosry of Centeol Bunk of Jnta!
Particulars
(i) Dela‘ils of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other long-term
borrowings.
Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Sscured Unsecu, Secured Unsecured
Rs in Lakhs Rs In Lakhs Rs In Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
Term loans from banks:
Refinance from National Housing Bank 13,201.53 - 13,320.32 -
Central Bank of India 21,516.83 - 15,089.05 -
HDFC Bank 5,715.58 - 9,146.67 -
BoB 3,141.54 - 1,571.82 -
Total - Term loans from banks 43 57545 - 39,138.86 -
'o_em
Deposits - 31,081.23 - 46,758.85
[ Total - Deposits - 31,081.23 - 46,758.85
{Below are the details of all loans/Refinance outstanding.
[Name of institution /{Security for loan} Amt sanctioned Amt. outstanding as |[Rate of interest Repayment terms
{Rs in Lakhs) on 31st March 2018
{Rs in Lakhe)
{NHB Refinance 230.00 92.40 8.7 28 Qtrly Inst
95.00 41.00 7.1 28 Qtrly Inst
Specific Charge over book debts of company 34.00 19.70 6.87 28 Qtrly Inst
598.00 427.50 6.87 40 Qurly Inst
150.00 115.35 6.87 40 Quly Inst
1,091.00 558.00 7.9 28 Qtrly Inst
2,156.00 1,898.00 9.1 60 Qrly Inst
2,058.00 1,778.00 8.95 60 Qtrly Inst
1,017.00 879.00 8.85 60 Qtrly Inst
179.00 24.90 7.5 28 Qtriy Inst
126.00 41.40 8.25 28 Qtrly Inst
551.00 183.62 8.5 28 Qtrly Inst
328.00 109.30 8.75 28 Qurly Inst
886.00 523.00 6.87 28 Qtriy Inst
2,391.00 1,705.00 6.87 40 Qtrly Inst
2,850.00 2,192.10 6.87 40 Qtriy Inst
1,729.00 1,417.50 6.12 28 Qtrly Inst
3,500.0¢ 3,230.60 S.11 60 Qtrly Inst
Central Bank of India
Specific Charge over book debts of company 10,000.00 9,850.36 8.3 60 monthly Inst
10,000.00 8,452.33 8.4 60 monthly Inst
10,000.00 7,499.85 8.4 28 Qurly Inst
HDFC Bank
Specific Charge over book debts of company 100.00 120.00 8.2 20 Qtrly Inst
1,187.50 1,000.00 8.35 20 Qtriy Inst
1,187.50 1,000.00 8.35 20 Qtrly Inst
937.50 750.00 8.2 20 Qtrly inst
937.50 750.60 8.2 20 Oy lnst_1
250.00 __166,67 8.2 20 Qsly Inst |
937.50 750.00 8.2 20 Qtsly Inst
360.00 270.00 8.2 20 Qerly Inst
200.00 150.00 8.2 20 Otrly Inst
1,750.00 1,375.00 8.2 20 Oty Inst
1,750.00 1,375.00 8.2 20 Otrly Inst




s 4 Home Finence Limited
{Swbaidisry of Cenived Bank of fedion

Particulars

270.00 180.00 8.2 20 Qtrly Inst
120.00 90.00 82 20 Qtrly Inst
450.00 300.00 © 82 20 Qtriy Inst
180.00 120.00 8.2 20 Qtrly Inst
937.50 750.00 8.2 20 Qtrly Inst

. ' 4,569. X h
[sank of Baroda 10,000.00 ,569.54 8.6 60 monthly Inst
Note: Company has not defautted in repayment of term loan installments and payment of deposits.
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note § Long-ter provisions

Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
{a) Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts 891.32 695.94
(b) Provision on Standard asset as per NHB norms 375.59 444.01
Total 1,266.91 1,139.95

a) Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts has been done as per the prudential norms of National Housing Bank.

|b) Provision on standard assets has been made as per the National Housing Bank norms @ 0.25%,0.40% and 1%
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

|Note 6 Short-terrn borrowings

Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
(a) Loans repayable on demand
From banks
Secured # 6,053.50 5,166.31
{b) Deposits *
Unsecured 23,203.25 21,299.64
Total 29,256.75 26,465.95
1Notes:
(i) Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings:
Particulars Nature of security As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
Loans repayable on demand
from banks:#
Central Bank of India 6,053.50 5,166.31
Total - from banks

I# Short term borrowings is overdraft facility (Limit of Rs.100 crores bearing ROI @base rate granted by Central Bank of India.

* With respect to Deposits, the company has created a floating charge as per the directions of NHB on the assets invested by
the company under section (1) & (2) of Section 298 of the NHB Act, 1987.
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 7 Other current liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
{a) Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note below) 11,183.67 11,423.67
|(b) Unpaid matured deposits and interest accrued thereon 648.99 459.62
{c) Other payables
(i} Contractually reimbursable expenses 5.04 7.25
(ii) Advances from customers 1.33 1.33
(iii) Bank balance
{iv) Others $ 627.36 907.90
(includes sundry creditors, provision for salary, CERSAI payable, Eamest money
deposits other misc payables.
Totall 12,466.38 12,799.77;
Note: As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017 |
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
L(a) Term loans
From banks
Secured 11,183.67 11,423.67|
Unsecured
Total 11,183.67 11,423.67,

# Current maturities of long term debt relates to long term loans mentioned in note no-4, long tenm borrowing. Details of security & guaram_eejs,_

mentioned in aforesaid loan.
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 8 Short-term provisions

Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
(a) Provision - Others:

(i) Provision for proposed equity dividend 500.00 125.00]
(ii) Provision for tax on proposed dividends 101.79 2545
(iii) Provision on Loan Assets 67.30 78.54r
(iv) Provision for dimunation in Investments - -
(v} Provision for other employee benefits# 24.79 22.34
{vi) CSR expenses provided for

Total £93.88 251,33

# a) Leave encashment for employee's had been calculated on the basis of leave entitiement during the year.

e T gt R
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‘Cent Bank Home Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Nots 9 Flxed assets

Tangible assets Gross block Accumulated depreciation and impairmeant
Balance Additions Disposals | Acquisitions Other Balance Balance Depraciation | Depreciation/ | Ellminated on Balance Balance Balance
as at through adjustments ag at asat Rate amortisation disposal of as at as at a8 at
1 April, 2017 business 31 March, 2018 | 1 April, 2017 axpensge for the assets 31 March, 31 March, 2018 | 31 March, 2017
combinations year 2018 {Net Block) (Net Black)

Rs in Lakhs RsinLakhe | RsinLakhs | Rainlakhs | RsinLakhs Rs In Lakhs Rs in Lakhs % Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs Rs$ in Lakhs
(@) Furniture and Fixtures Owned 104,18 267 162 . - 105.23 77.22 9.50% 3.95 1.62 79.55 25.68 26.98
(b) Vehicies Owned 11.88 - 0.02 - - 11.66 1.82 11.88% 138 0.02 3.19 8.47 9.85
{c) Office eguipment Owned 3430 2.94 8.10 - - 29.15 24.36 19.00% 3.79 7.75 20.39 8.75 9.94
{d) Computer 98.09 5.55 8.38 - - 95.26 86.04 31.67% 7.99 8.37 85.66 9.60 12.05
Total 248.25 1115 18.11 - - 241.29 189.44 17.10 17.76 188.79 52.50 58.80
Previous year 235.69 16.38 3.82 - - 248.26 169.03 22.88 2.47 189.43 58.80 86.85]
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Az at 3t March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
|___Ouoted s Unguoted # Total Quoted Unquolay Total
Rs in Lakivs Rs in Lokhs R3 » Lakhs Rs i bakht Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
o) @} of subeidiaries
(i)} of ansocietes. 100.00 100.00
Jotal - Trade (A)] 100.00 100.00
Pasticutars As ot 39 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
| Quoted | Unquoted Jotat Guoted Unguoted Jotal
3 tn Lakhs Rs in Lakha R i Lakine RuinLakhs | Rs i Lokhs Rs in Laichs
(b} Irvestment in govemment of trust securities
(@ povernmant sscurities - 2976.04 2.976.04 . 2976.04 2,676.04
M = e
Particelars As 9t 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2097
-—?ﬁl —_Unquoted Yol 1 _ Ouoisd Unguoted Yotal
Rs in Lakhy Rs in Lakhs Rs in La Rs in Lakhs R In Laks Rt i Lakhs
(6)  Ofher non-cuent iwastments (apacily nakue}
Aggregata amound of quoted vestments 100.00 100.00
Aggregate amount of unquoted iwestments. 297604 2976.04 2,076.04 2976.04
| 2978.04 2,976.04 | 2,976.04 3078.04
# Ivesimenis are i the neture of long teem b in G ribes and Bonde of Ceriral Bank of Incia and are stated 21 cosl There ks no D i valwe of i ¢
313t March 'mﬂ 3tst March 2017
Rsin Rs m Lakhs
100,00
17
100.60
13995 14935
318,51 11851 |
194.03 19433
24628 24828
506.26 $035.25
100.20 10020
$05.95 $05.95
25310 233.10
500.88 500.48
12| 7.88% Cantrsl Gioq, Seauwiiies 200.33 20035
2030 & Rs.100/- aach
1317.64% Ceniral Govt Securities 100,14 100.14
2020 g Rs. 1007 aach
Grand Total 576.04 3,076.04
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|Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

|[Note 11 Long-term loans and advances

Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 |As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
1(&) Security deposits
Secured, considered good 39.79 39.84
{b) Loans and advances to employees
Secured, considered good 25.63 49.82
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances 0.06 0.20
25.57 49.62
(c) Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, considered good Insurance
(d) Refund due from Revenue Authorities 179.42 389.91
(e} HOUSING LOANS & NON-HOUSING LOANS
Secured by tangible assets, considered good 1,02,957.87 1,10,785.16
Substandard 844.35 582.10
Doubtful & Loss 1,845.48 1,566.42
Totat (f) 1,05,647.70 1,12,933.68
Less: Provision for loans and advances 1,266.91 1,085.78
1,04,380.79 1,11,847.90
Total (a+b+c+d+e+f) 1,05,892.54 1,13,413.24

# Long_‘-l'en'n loans and advances includes Housing loan, Top-up loan, Mortgage loan, Loan Against property, Project
loan & loan for purchase of commercial property given to the borrowers and which includes the principal amount as
well as interest charged reduced by EM! paid to the date. EM! Amount receivable within 12 months from the date has

been classified in short term loans and advances.
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 12 Other non-current assets

Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 | As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
(a) Unamortised expenses: Loan acquisition cost

(i) Unamortized Loan acquisition cost 611.69 490.67
Add: Expenses during the year 146.96 275.85
Less: Amortized during the year 196.74 154.83
Closing Balance 561.91 611.69
{Less: To be Amortized during next year, ‘(Current Portion) 206.39 183.54
355.52 428.16

H(b) Unamortised expenses: Brokerage on borrowings
(i) Unamortized Brokerage on borrowings 149.40 262.63
Add: Expenses during the year 8.48 35.15
Less: Amortized during the year 104.86 148.38
Closing Balance 5§3.01 149.40
Less: To be Amortized during next year (Current Portion) 50.69 91.45
2.33 57.95

TOTAL 357.85
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 13 Cash and cash equlvalents

Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 | As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
(a) Cash on hand 21.02 42.47
(c) Balances with banks
{i} In current accounts 263.60 427.65
(i) In deposit accounts (Refer Note (i)# (ii)below) 2,050.10 2,748.30
Total 2,334.73 - 3,218.42
(i}# The whole amount denotes cash & cash equivalents as
per AS-3 cash flow statements
{(ii) Bank deposit classification
Maturity Period Rs in Lakhs
With in 3 Months 1,551.00
Less than 12 Months 499.10
Total 2,050.10
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 14 Short-term loans and advances

{Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
(a) Loans and advances
Secured, considered good 20,804.53 19,208.95
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances/standard 67.29 78.51
20,737.24 19,130.44
f(b) Loans and advances to employees
Secured, considered good 4.44 7.89
Unsecured, considered good 0.02 0.14
Less: Provision on loans and advances (Standard) 0.01 0.0SJ
(¢} Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, considered good (For e.9. 13.19 24‘16|
Insurance premium, Annual maintenance contracts, Advance rent
etc.)
Total 20,822.18 19,241.14

Note: Amount shown in balance sheet is without provision. Provision have been shown in short term provision .
|Rs 20804528897 is taken under short term loan & advances and Rs 6729211 taken 1o short term provision.
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 15 Other current assets

Recoverable, CERSAI charges recoverable & misc
receivable also)

Particulars As at 31 March, 2018 | As at 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
(a) Accruals
(i} Interest accrued on deposits 196.78 96.25
(if) Interest accrued on investments 39.02 30.73
{b) Others
(i} Unamortized loan acquisition cost 2086.39 183.54
(iii) Unamortized Brokerage on Borrowings 50.69 91.45
(iv) Others (Includes SARFAESI Charges 195.39 242.10

Total

653.07

Grand Total

653.07
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limlited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
Note 16 Revenue from operations
Particulars
For the yearended | For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs |
(a) |Interest income on individual loans & project loans 14,080.11 13,000.00
(b) |Interst on Bank deposits and Investment 453.38 519.54
(c) |Other operating revenues
Interest on demand loan, vehicle loans, personal loan, fees & other 40411 473.57
charges _
14,937.59 14,002.10
Total 14,937. 14,002.10}
I# Detalls of revenue from operations:
For the year ended [For the year ended 31
31 March, 2018 March, 2017
Particulars Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
(i) [Interest Income comprises:
Individual Loans 14,034.88 12,950.40
Corporate bodies/builders 45.23 58.59
Total 14,080.11 13,009.00
(iy |Other operating revenues comprise:
Processing, Administration fees and other charges 401.48 |. 471.22
Interest on demand loan against fixed deposit 2.62 229
Interest on Vehicle loan - 0.0t
Interest on personal loan 0.01 0.04
Total - Other operating revenues 404.11 473.57

1
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 17 Other income

Particulars For the year ended {For the year ended 31
31 March, 2018 March, 2017
_Rsin Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
{a) |Other non-operating income {net of expenses directly atiributable to such income) (Refer Note (i) 119.47 73.58
below)
Total 119.47 73.58
Note Particulars Forthe yearended | Forthe year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
(i) [Other non-operating income comprises:
Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.65 0.09
hM‘rsoeilanews income $18.82 73.49|
Total - Other non-operating income 119.47 73.58]
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 18 Employee benefit expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2018

For the year ended
31 March, 2017

7

Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
Salaries and wages 554.63 568.19
Contributions to provident and other funds 29.50 3492
Staff welfare expenses 10.74 14.47
Total 594.87 617.57

I# Salary & wages includes salaries of Cent Bank as well as Central Bank employees on deputation to the company.
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

|Note 19 Finance Costs
Particulars For the year ended 31 | For the year ended
March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
{a} interest expense on Bommowings # 10.516.94 10,242.55
{b) Other borrowing costs (Bank Charges) 22.22 42.94
Total 10,539.16 10,235.49

deposits

I# Interest expenses includes interest on term loan from Central Bank of india, HDFC Bank, Bank of Baroda, NHB Refinance & nterest on
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 20 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended
March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
Power and fuel/electricity expenses 22.03 20.79
Rent including lease rentals 133.10 128.50
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 12.00 12.08
Repairs and maintenance - Others 8.04 6.29
Insurance 3.02 4.06
Communication 18.51 21.75
Travelling and conveyance 4238 36.52
Printing and stationery 11.24 9.68
Reimbursement to Manpower supply agency 194.09 182.95
Advertissment & Publicity 3.64 6.26
Legal and professional 139.60 159.18
Payments to auditors {Refer Note (i) below) 7.28 5.62
intemal audit expenses/stock audit fees 15.31 24.20
CSR Expenditure 33.03 -
Loss on fixed assets sold/ - 0.05
RCU/F] verification Expenses 38.27 41.11
Directors Sitting fees 7.43 7.34
Miscellaneous expenses 109.57 54.24
Brokerage 104.86 129.72
DSA Commission {amount amortized) 196.74 154.83
Sub -Total 1,100.11 1,005.06
Particuiars For the year ended 31 For the year ended
March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
(i) Payments to the auditors comprises :-
Fees Paid
For statutory audit 3.00 2.00
For tax audit 1.00 1.09
For Certification 3.26 242
Total 7.26 5,52
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited

[Note 21. Provision for Standard Assets

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Particutars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
Provision on standard assets as per NHB norms (79.66) 83.67
Total (79.66) 83.67

Note :- As per NHB Norms provision on statndard assets is to be created by0.25%, 0.40% and 1%

Note 22, Extra Ordinary items

Total

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
IReversal of provision on Standard Assets ' - 132.52
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Additional Information on the Financial Statements

Note 23

1) Loans and installments due from borrowers shown under Loans and Advances are secured
wholly by Equitable Mortgage of Property, Pledge of shares, other Securities, assignment of
Life Insurance Properties, Undertaking to create security, Bank guarantee/ corporate
guarantees/ personal guarantees.

2)

Advances are classified as performing and non performing assets in accordance with
guidelines on prudential norms issued by National Housing Bank (NHB). Provisions on
standard assets, sub standard assets, doubtful assets and loss assets have been made as per
NHB Directions 2010 as amended from time to time. In Addition to above a floating provision
for an amount of Rs. Nil Also provided to bridge the gap for any short comings as per the
Accounting Policy of the Company.

(Rs in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Outstanding Provisions Outstanding Provision
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
HOUSING LOAN:
To Individuals
Standard Assets 100430.26 342.03 106780.54 427.12
Sub-Standard Assets 622.06 93.31 343.97 5159
Doubtful Assets 1008.27 477.53 835.09 380.79
Loss Assets 0.64 0.64
To Non-Individuals
Standard Assets 149.28 1.12 349,17 3.49
Sub-Standard Assets 31.30 4.69
Doubtful Assets 160.90 64.36 160.92 40.23
Loss Assets - 0
Floating provision - 0
Total (A) 102370.77 978.35 108501.63 908.55
For the year ended For the year ended
31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Outstanding Provisions Outstanding Provision
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
NON HOUSING LOAN:
To Individuals
Standard Assets 23340.59 99.68 23006.34 91.94
Sub-Standard Assets 173.05 25.97
Doubtful Assets 597.90 230.21
Loss Assets
To Non-Individuals




Standard Assets - -

Sub-Standard Assets - -

Doubtful Assets - -

Loss Assets - -

Floating provision

Total (B) 24111.54 355.86 23698.85 309.95

TOTAL (A+B) 126482.31 1334.21 132200.48 1218.50

The above NPA Balances are net of unrealized interest of Rs.12763284/-

3) Prior Period item having total amount of Rs. 3083288.91 includes reversal of old
liability/income Rs. 15950214.41 and Assets/Expenses of Rs. 12866925.5 relates to
previous years.

4) Change in accounting policy: Till 2016-17 company was charging depreciation at 100% on
Fixed Asset having value of less than Rs. 5000. However from this year the company has
changed the policy and has adopted the rates of depreciation as prescribed under Schedule I
of the Companies Act 2013, which has resulted into increase of profit by Rs. 169509 only.

5) During the year there were no circumstances in which revenue recognition has been
postponed pending the resolution of significant uncertainties.

6) Interest on Non-Performing Assets is recognized on realization basis as per the NHB
Guidelines. Accordingly the total interest de-recognized as at the Balance Sheet date is
summarized asunder:-

Asat 31-03-2018 Asat31-03-2017
(Rs in Lakhs) (Rs in Lakhs)
Cumulative Interest B/F from last 84.21 76.91
Balance Sheet
Outstanding derecognized Interest
- Sub Standard Assets(Net) 49.24 30.11
- Doubtful/Loss Assets 78.39 54.09
Total Interest Derecognized 127.63 84.20
7) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) (Rs in Lakhs)
Asat 31-03-2018 As at 31-03-2017
i) CRAR(%) 18.76% 17.56%
i) CRAR-Tier I Capital 13.98% 12.54%
iii) CRAR-Tier II Capital 4.78% 5.02%
iv) Amount of Subordinate 3000.00 3000
debt raised as Tier-Il
Capital
v) Amount raised by issue of 0.00 0.00
Perpetual Debt Instruments

8) As per Section 29 C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer




purpose any Special Reserve created by the Company under Section 36(1) (vii) of Income
Tax Act, 1961 is considered to be an eligible transfer. Accordingly, the Company has
transferred Rs.57145605.00 to Special Reserve U/s 36(1)(VIiI)of Income Tax Act, 1961

during the year.
(Rs in Lakhs)

Statement as per NHB circular No. NHB.HFC.CG.DIR.1/MD&CEO /2016 dated
9th February,2017

Particulars Amount Amount

Balance at the beginning of the year 2017-18 2016-17

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National 300.00 300.00
Housing Bank Act, 1987

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(vii) of 3418.85 3035.63
Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the
purposes of Statutory Reserve under, Section
29C of the NHB Act, 1987.

¢) Total 3718.85 3335.63

Addition/Appropriation/ Withdrawal during the
year

Add: a} Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB
Act, 1987

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(vii) of 571.46 383.22
Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for
the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Less: a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory -
Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

b} Amount withdrawn from the Special
Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act,
1961 which has been taken into account
for the purpose of provision u/s 29C of the
NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National 300.00 300.00
Housing Bank Act, 1987

b} Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(vii) of 3990.31 3418.85
Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the
purposes of Statutory Reserve under, Section 29C
of the NHB Act, 1987

c) Total 4290.31 3718.85
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9} Investments¥+¥*

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
7.1) Value of Investments 2976.04 3076.04
i) Gross value of Investments 2976.04 3076.04
a) InIndia 2976.04 3076.04
b) Outside India 0 0
i} Provision for Depreciation 0 0
a) InlIndia 0 0
b) Outside India 0 0
iii) Net value of Investments 2976.04 3076.04
a) InlIndia 2976.04 3076.04
b) Outside India 0 0
7.2) Movement of provision held towards Nil Nil
depreciation on Investment
i} Opening Balance Nil Nil
i) Add: Provisions made during Nil Nil
the year
iii) Less: Write-off/ Written- Nil Nil
back of excess provisions
during the year
iv) Closing Balance Nil Nil

*%* Investments are exclusive of Bank Deposits held for SLR purpose.

10)Derivatives:
i) Forward Rate Agreement(FRA)/Interest Rate Swap (IRS)- Nil
if) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) derivative- Nil
iii) Disclosure on Risk exposure in derivatives
a) Qualitative Disclosure-Nil
b) Quantitative Disclosures-Nil
11) Securitization: Nil
i) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation/Reconstruction Company for Asset
Reconstruction-Nil
it) Details of Assignment transaction undertaken by HFCs- Nil
iii) Details of Non- Performing Financial Assets purchased/sold-Nil
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12) Assets Liabilities Management {Maturity pattern of

certain items assets and

liabilities) (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Up to | Over 1§ Over 2! Over 3 | Over 6 | Over 1 | Over 3 | Over 5 | Over 7 | Over Total
30/31 month & | months | months | monhs & [ Year & | Year & [ Year & { Year & | 10
daysfone | upto 2 | &upto | & upto [ upto 1 | upte 3 J uptoc 5 | upto 7 | upto 10 | Years
month} months 3 6 year Years Years Years Years
Months | months
Liabilities
Deposits 500 1000 800 5600 | 10100 | 9800 23500 | 2900 | 0 0 54200
Botvowings from | 400 300 3100 | 3800 | 7100 21500 | 13600 | 7800 | 2100 1100 60800
Banks
Market
Borrowings
Assets
Advances 2000 1900 2000__ ] 6000 12000 | 31500 | 38500 | 12000 | 4500 13400 | 123800
Investments 1400 | 700 200 700 0 0 0 3000
Forelgn Currency
13)Exposure
14) Exposure to Real Estate Sector (Rs in Lakhs)
S.No Category For the Year For the Year
31-03-2018 31-03-2017
A Direct Exposure
i) Residential Mortgages (including loan against
residential property)
Lending fully secured by mortgages on 125147.90 108253.78
residential property that is or will be occupied
by the borrower or that is rented.
Out of which Individuals Housing Loans upto 6211.16 45719.48
Rs.15 lakhs
i) Commergijal Real Estate 1406.97 541.34

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial
real estate (office buildings, retail space,
multipurpose commercial premises, multi
family residential buildings, muiti-tenanted
commercial premises, industrial or ware house
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and
construction, etc). Exposure would also include
non fund based (NFB) limits

iii) Investment in Mortgage Backed Securities
(MBS} and other securitized exposures-

a) Residential

b) Commercial Real Estate

B indirect Exposure

Fund Based and non Fund based exposures on
National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs)
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i) Exposure to Capital Market-Nil
i) Details of Financing of Parent Company-Nil
iii) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL)/ Group Borrower limit (GBL) exceeded by

HFC-Nil

15) Unsecured Advances-Nil

16} During the current year company has created Deferred Tax liability on Special Reserves
maintained by Housing Finance Companies under Section 36(1)(Viii) of the Income Tax Act
towards compliance of the guidelines issued by NHB vide circular no.NHB(ND)/DRS/Policy
Circular 65/2014-15 dated August 22, 2014. As per the circular we have appropriated as

follows:

(Rs in Lakhs)

Deferred Tax Asset

Amount

2017-18

Amount

2016-17

Provision for NPA's

Standard Assets

461.77

421.72

Others

8.58

7.73

Depreciation

3.46

473.81

244

431.89

B)

Deferred Tax

Liability

Special Reserve

¢ Opening Amt
Transfer  during
the year

¢ From Surplus
* From P&L

1164.44

197.79

197.79

1362.23

609.26

132.64
422.55

555.19

1164.44

Others

212.82

1575.05

264.64

1429.08

(A)-(B)

1101.24

997.19

17) Accounting Standard 21- Consolidated Financial Statement-Nil

131 of 138




18) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

{Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2018 2017
Claims  against the Company, not Nil Nil
acknowledged as debts
Contingent liability on account of income tax. 25.06 25.06

This demand of Rs. 2506487 includes Rs 1418837 for A.Y. 2010-11 and Rs 1087650 for A.Y.
2014-15. Since the proceeding against these demands are pending with Income Tax
authorities for giving credit of TDS and Tax paid hence these are not provided in the books
of account.

19) Reporting Under Accounting Standard AS-18- Related Party Disclosures
Details of Related Party:
(a) Holding Company:
Central Bank of India
(b) Key Managerial Personnel
(i) Shri B.S. Harilal, Managing Director
(i) Shri Vijay Kumar Singh Chief Financial Officer
(ifi)  Shri Manish Payal, Company Secretary

The related Party Transaction with Key Managerial Personnel is furnished below:

Rs in Lakhs
Description 2017-18 2016-17
Salary and Allowances, cont. to PF etc of Key Managerial 42.40 50.57

Personnel

20) Reporting Under Accounting Standard AS-20- Earning Per share (EPS)The Basic and diluted
Earnings per share have been calculated based on the profit after tax and the average
number of shares during the year. Information in respect of Earning per Share (EPS),
pursuant to AS-20 is as under:

(AmtInRs.)
Ason 31-03-2018 As on 31-03-2017
a) Profit/Loss after Tax (inRs.) 168358963 110408437
b) No. of shares (In Nos.) 25000000 25000000
c) Weighted Average number 25000000 25000000
of equity shares for Basic
EPS




d) Basic EPS (a/c)(In Rs.) 6.73

4.42

e) Diluted EPS (a/c) (InRs.) 6.73

242 N

21) Reporting Under Accounting Standard AS-17 Segment Reporting:
The Company’s main business is to provide loans for the purchase or construction of
residential houses. Hence, there are no separate reportable segments as per Accounting
Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,2006.

22) Company has during the year provided for Non-Performing Assets as per the prudential
norms of National Housing Bank. Reporting under accounting standard AS-29.

{a) Movement of provision {Rs in Lakhs}
Opening Provisions on Bad & Doubtful Debts 695.94
Less: Reversal due to accounts written-off =
Add: Addition on account of fresh slippage (net of 195.38
reduction due to recovery)

Closing Provision on Bad & Doubtful Debts 891.32

{b) Net of amount written-off (Details)

Current Previous
Year Year
(Rsin (Rsin

Lakhs) Lakhs)

Bad Debts Written-off

-

Reversal due to accounts written-off

Addition due to Slippage/ Reversal on account of 195.38
recovery (net-off)
Total

Reversal of Provision Net of amount written off

- 195.38

23) As per the information available with the Company, there are no amounts payable to any
“suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006. Supplementary

24) Provision and Contingencies (Rs in Lakhs)
Break up of ‘Provision and Contingencies’ Current Year Previous Year
shown under the head Expenditure in Profit
and Loss Account

1. Provisions for depreciation on Investment - -

2. Provision made towards Income tax 791.12 530.54

3. Provision towards NPA 891.32 695.94

4. Provision for Standard Assets () 442.79 522.55

5. Other Provision and Contingencies (with 230 322
details)




-

(Rs in Lakhs)

Break up of Loan and Advances Housing Non Housing
and Provision thereon Current Previous | Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Standard Assets
a) Total Qutstanding | 100579.54 { 107129.71 | 23340.59 23006.34
Amount
b) Provisions Made 343.15 430.61 99.68 91.94
Sub-Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding 622.06 375.28 173.05 176.78
Amount
b) Provisions Made 93.31 56.28 25.97 26.51
Doubt ful-1 Category-I
a) Total Outstanding 314.62 466.88 211.21 222.85
Amount
b} Provisions Made 78.67 116.73 52.82 55.71
Doubtful Assets- Category-II
a) Total Qutstanding 652.24 374.95 348.85 261.82
Amount
b) Provisions Made 26091 14998 139.55 104.73
Doubtful Assets - Category-Ill
a) Total Qutstanding 202.31 154.17 37.84 31.06
Amount
b) Provisions Made 202.31 154.31 37.84 31.06
Loss Assets
a) Total Outstanding 0 0.635 0 0
Amount
b) Provisions Made 0 0.635 0 0
Total
a) Total Outstanding | 12370.77 108501.63 | 24111.54 23698.85
Amount
b) Provisions Made 978.35 908.55 355.86 __ﬂ,_3_0€?_,9§”1
S\
N
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Note:
1. The total outstanding amount mean principal+ accrued interest+ other charges
pertaining to loans without netting off.
2. The category of Doubtful Assets will be as under:

Perlod for which the assets has been considered as doubtful Category
Up to one Year Category-1
One to three Years Category-ll
More than three years Category-ili

25) Current liabilities includes short term borrowings which consists of deposits going to
matured within a year, whereas current assets includes installments receivables from the
loans granted to individual/non-individual borrowers within a year. The loans granted to
borrowers are generally long term loans having tenor of 15-20 years. An HFC can accept
deposits for a maximum period of 10 years. Average maturity of deposits ranges between 2-
3 years. Thus, the mismatch is always there. Company is having sufficient credit line
available in case of any adverse condition,

26) We have not entered into any long term contract including derivative contract which may
have any material foreseeable losses.

27) Draw Down from Reserves : During the year the Company has withdrawn Rs Nil,
28) Registration obtained from other Financial sector regulators-Nil
29) Miscellaneous:
i) Disclosure of penalties imposed by NHB - Rs. 70195+12635(GST)= Rs. 82830.00
ii) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RoC -Rs. 52800.00 for creation of floating

charge.

30) Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

1) Concentration of Public Deposit: {Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 7895.16 11516.01
Percentage of Total Deposits of the HFC 27.60% 28.57%

ii) Concentration of Loans and Advances: (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Total Loans and Advances to twenty largest 2030.19 2427.94
borrowers
Percentage of Loans and Advances to twenty largest 1.60% 1.83%
borrowers to Total Advances of the HFC

iii) Concentration of all Exposures (Inclading off-balance sheet exposure) (Rs in Lakhs)
[ Particulars [ Current Year | Previoys Year |




Total Exposure to Twenty largest borrowers/ 2540.38 3145.23
Customers

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest 2.00% 237%
borrowers/customers to Total Exposure of the HFC on
borrowers/ customers

iv) Concentration of NPAs . (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 512.30 45.50

V) Sector-wise NPAs
S.No Sector Percentage of NPAs to total Advances in

that Sector
A Housing Loans
1. individuals 1.68%
2. Builders loan 51.94%
3. Corporates -
4. Others{Specify) -
B Non-Housing Loans:
1. Individuals 3.36%
2. Builders . -
3. Corporates -
4. Others(Specify) -

vi) Movement of NPAs (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
i) Net NPAs to Net Advances % 1.33% 1.10%

ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a) Opening Balance 214852 2329.57

b} Additions during the year 1018.11 57291

¢) Reduction during the year 476.81 753.96

d) Closing Balance 2689.82 2148.52

31) Overseas Assets-Nil

32) Off- balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accountmg
Norms)- Nil

33) In respect of employees directly recruited by the company, contribution to Provident Fund is
made at the prescribed rate. Provident Fund liability of staff on deputatlon from Central
Bank of India is met by Central Bank of India. T

34) Concentration of Public Deposits{for Public Deposits taking/holding HFCs) §' %
BHOPAL ) #

4

136 of 138



CBHFL
Highlight


35) Rating Assigned by Credit Rating Agency:

Agency Purpose Rating

CARE Debenture CARE A-; Outlook Negative
CARE Long term Bank Facilities CARE A-; Qutlook Negative
CRISIL Deposit FA-/stable

36) Reporting Under Accounting Standard AS-15- Retirement benefits:

i

ii.

iii,

iv.

iii)

The Company makes its share of contributions to the Provident Fund as per defined
benefit plan. The Company has no further obligations apart from its contributions. Such
contributions are recognized as expenditure in the Profit & Loss account.

Gratuity:- In accordance with the payment of Gratuity Act 1972, the Company provides
for Gratuity covering eligible employees. To fund its liability the Company has taken a
policy with Life Insurance Corporation of India to cover the accumulated gratuity
liability of its employees and the premium paid on this policy has been charged to Profit
& Loss account.

The Provision of leave encashment liability is calculated on the balance-privilege leave
of the employees as on 31-03-18. The same has been provided for the year ended 31-
03-2018.

For the staff deputed from Central Bank of India the gratuity liability and leave
encashment has been met/to be met by Central Bank of India. In respect of the eligible
retirement/terminal benefits like gratuity, pension and encashment of leave, the same is
provided for by Central Bank of India.

Disclosure regarding penalty or adverse comments as per Housing Finance
Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010. During the current year, the Company was
imposed a penalty of Rs. Rs. 70195+12635(GST)= Rs. 82830.00 for non maintenance
of SLR by National Housing Bank.

37) As per NHB refinance guidelines, the Company is required to submit half-yearly certificate as
on 30t September and 31t March disclosing therein the difference between hypothecated
book debts and NHB refinance outstanding. The adverse balance as on 31-03-2018 is Rs Nil,
(Previous Year Rs. (Rs.Nil).

38) During the year the company has not created floating provisions on Bad & Doub_tfpl Debts.

39) Exposure in capital market : NIL

.
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40) Previous Year Figures

The figures of the previous year are reworked to meet the requirements of Scheduie IIl.

These figures are rearranged, regrouped and reclassified where considered necessary to
provide a true and fair view.

41) Corporate Sacial Responsibility

During the year Company has spent Rs. 33,02,843 /- towards Corporate Social
Responsibility under section 135 of Companies Act,2013 and rules thereon.

42} Detail of complaints received:-

Particulars Count
Number of Complaints at the beginning of the year 0
Number of Complaints at the received during the year 26
Number of Complaints at the closed during the year 26
Number of Complaints pending at the end of the year 0

'
/ 4 Ih 4D il,w-’hf""’
As per our report of even date P.R. Murthy B.S. Harilal

Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 07815852 DIN: 07886919

P =

For Multi Associates Vijay Kumar Singh Manish Singh Payal

Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

CAR. K, Agrawal
Partner

M. No. 071755
FRN 509955C

Place: Camp Mumbai

Date: 17t April 2018

138 of 138




	Binder1.pdf
	Updated Director Report

	Binder1.pdf
	Annual Report 2017-18 (numbered)
	Binder1.pdf
	Updated Director Report




